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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited (formerly known as Universe International
Financial Holdings Limited) (the “Company”), | hereby
present the 2018/2019 annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
30th June 2019 (the “Year”).

The Group is principally engaged in video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
entertainment business, securities investment, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical and watches products.
Taking into account the increase in number of the listed
companies and the increase in demand of financial printing
services in Hong Kong, the Group commenced the business
of financial printing services (“Financial Printing Business”)
during the Year to provide the services of type-setting,
translation, printing, design, distribution of financial print
products and other related services to the financial sectors in
Hong Kong through Formex Financial Press Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. We are of the view that the
commencement of the Financial Printing Business will be a
good opportunity for the Group to diversify its income streams.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

AANERREFTREXLLEEER A A
(FMBETERSBERAERAR) (TA
2ANEF(EFDE(EFE)) "2
ARRAILREMBAR(GHEIAEER]H
E_T-NEFRA=Z+HLEEE(LXE
BNZ2ZZB-—N/ZE-—NFEEFX£E-

AEBITERFTHERET BEXETR
MR- RERBREZRE BE KRE
MELE REXL BHFERE RER
BREMES HERTEXK -KER
FARA 2 EmRAEEB LR EER AR
BERLEAR AEEFARET HE
ENmI AR 7 =15 ([BH R ENRI 75 )) - BB A
RAIZEEMBRARTAMEARER
REREMGERER PR BE
R Rt D IERREREMEERSE T
EEMER -BARLSRARYEEDR X
BRHASAEEREHRHE 2 T(EEKA
KR



The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$121.6
million for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
10.2% as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$135.4
million for the same period last year, which was mainly due to
the net effect of (i) the Group had recorded a fair value loss
arising from the change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$5.3 million
for the Year in the securities investments business segment
while the Group had recorded a fair value loss arising from the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$108.6 million for the year
ended 30th June 2018 in the securities investments business
segment; (ii) the Group recorded a gain on disposal of the
202 feature films of approximately HK$182.1 million for the
year ended 30th June 2018 (the "Disposal of Film Library”)
and also recorded directors and staff bonus of approximately
HK$35.6 million in connection with the Disposal of Film Library
for the year ended 30th June 2018. However, there were
no such transactions and directors and staff bonus occurred
during the Year; (iii) during the year ended 30th June 2018,
the Group ceased its business in securities brokerage and
margin financing due to deterioration of operating results
and financial performance and wrote off the goodwill and
trading rights held in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in relation to this business
of approximately HK$28.1 million and approximately HK$11.4
million, respectively. There were no such write off of the
goodwill and trading rights occurred during the Year; and (iv)
the change in expected credit loss of approximately HK$26.8
million (2018: Nil) which is mainly arising from the increase
in expected credit loss of allowance for loans receivable in
money lending business of approximately HK$18.7 million
during the Year.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date of 30th June 2019, the
Group released a new blockbuster film called “White Storm 2 —
Drug Lords” (“$@ & 2K ¥A "), directed by Herman Yau (31
J%&) and starring Andy Lau (2]122£), Louis Koo, (FX%£), Michael
Miu (&5 1&1&), Karena Lam (#3zfX), Kent Cheng (£88]=) and
Cherrie Ying (FESZ52) in July 2019 and recorded a remarkable
box office of approximately RMB1.3 billion in the People’s
Republic of China (which excludes Hong Kong for the purpose
of this report) (the “PRC"). The Group will continue to invest
in original productions of quality films and put more resources
into large-scale film productions to meet the growing demand
for high-quality of entertainment experience in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

For the trade, wholesale and retail of optical and watches
products segment of the Group, we recorded an increase
in turnover by 26.3% and a decrease in segment loss by
14.0% during the Year as compared to the same period last
year. However the recent social unrest in Hong Kong and the
downward pressure on economic growth and unfavorable
financial market conditions arising from the year-long US-China
trade war will negatively impact our results in this segment
in coming year.

Nevertheless, the Group will continue to take a cautious
approach towards the new investment in the film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights and closely monitor
the market environment to adjust our strategic, shops locations
and products mix of our retail business to accommodate the
changes.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and Shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$121.6
million for the year ended 30th June 2019 (the "Year"),
representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% as compared
to the net loss of approximately HK$135.4 million for the same
period last year, which was mainly due to the net effect of
(i) the Group had recorded a fair value loss arising from the
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$5.3 million for the Year in
the securities investments business segment while the Group
had recorded a fair value loss arising from the change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$108.6 million for the year ended 30th
June 2018 in the securities investments business segment;
(ii) the Group recorded a gain on the Disposal of Film Library
of approximately HK$182.1 million for the year ended 30th
June 2018 and also recorded directors and staff bonus of
approximately HK$35.6 million in connection with the Disposal
of Film Library for the year ended 30th June 2018. However,
there were no such transactions and directors and staff bonus
occurred during the Year; (iii) during the year ended 30th June
2018, the Group ceased its business in securities brokerage
and margin financing due to deterioration of operating results
and financial performance and wrote off the goodwill and
trading rights held in the Stock Exchange in relation to this
business of approximately HK$28.1 million and approximately
HK$11.4 million, respectively. There were no such write off of
the goodwill and trading rights occurred during the Year; and (iv)
the change in expected credit loss of approximately HK$26.8
million (2018: Nil) which is mainly arising from the increase
in expected credit loss of allowance for loans receivable in
money lending business of approximately HK$18.7 million
during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$7.8 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 81.0% as compared to approximately
HK$41.0 million in the same period last year. It accounted
for approximately 12.6% (2018: approximately 47.3%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year. The significant decrease in
revenue from this business segment was mainly due to the
absence of release of new films produced by the Group and
the decrease in the number of old films rights licensed to third
parties during the Year.

Segmental loss from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$52.4 million, while the Group recorded
segmental profit of approximately HK$129.0 million in the
same period last year. The increase in segmental loss is mainly
due to (i) the Group recorded a gain on the Disposal of Film
Library of approximately HK$182.1 million for the year ended
30th June 2018; and also recorded directors and staff bonus
for the year ended 30th June 2018 of approximately HK$35.6
million in connection with the Disposal of Film Library.
However, there were no such transactions and directors and
staff bonus occurred during the Year; and (ii) the decrease of
revenue during the Year.

The market of the PRC is one of the largest film markets in
the world. According to the information released by the Film
Division of the State Administration of Press, Publication,
Radio, Film and Television, the total box office of the PRC
in 2017 reached RMB55.91 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 13%. In 2018, the total
accumulated box office of the PRC hit record high and reached
approximately RMB60.98 billion in 2018, up by approximately
9% vyear-on-year. As box office of the PRC continues to set
new record in previous years and the Group is optimistic about
the prospect of this segment.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In response to the growing demand for high-quality of
entertainment experience in China, the Group will continue to
invest in original production of quality films and will put more
resources into large-scale film productions that enable broader
and deeper market penetration. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date of 30th June 2019, the Group released a new
blockbuster film called “White Storm 2 — Drug Lords"” ("#7%&
2R R "), directed by Herman Yau (Ef#&3%) and starring
Andy Lau (2If£2E), Louis Koo, (5 X%£), Michael Miu (B 51#),
Karena Lam (#£3fiX), Kent Cheng (£f8l+) and Cherrie Ying
(FESX52) in July 2019 and recorded a remarkable box office of
approximately RMB1.3 billion in the PRC.

The Group expects to release a new film called “Atonement”
("PuEE" wrote, directed and performed with breakthrough by
Ronald Cheng (#FR &) and starring Chrissie Chau (& #5)
and Philip Keung (Z#5X) during the year ending 30th June
2020. During the Year, the Group started the shooting
another blockbuster film called “Shock Wave 2" ("#F5EHX
2") directed by Herman Yau (Ef#&)%) and starring Andy Lau
(B#%=%), Sean Lau (BIFE) and Ni Ni (f24E) and expects to
release it within 2020. In addltlon, the Group is investing and
producing 8 on-line movies, 1 TV drama and 1 movie in the
PRC. The Group also plans to invest and produce 5 on-line
movies and 2 movies in coming year.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical and watches
products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$35.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 26.2% as compared to approximately HK$28.2
million in the same period in last year. Revenue from this
business segment included the revenue of approximately
HK$16.9 million (2018: approximately HK$5.3 million) from
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products in Hong
Kong and the PRC (“Optical Business”) and the revenue of
approximately HK$18.7 million (2018: approximately HK$22.9
million) from trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches
products (“Watches Business”) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
It accounted for approximately 57.8% (2018: approximately
32.6%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

The revenue of the Optical Business was improving during
the Year. The number of optical retail shops operated by the
Group under a management and license agreement with
the right to use the trade name of "X 28 Hong Kong
Optical” increased from 2 as at 30th June 2018 to 9 as at
30th June 2019 in Hong Kong. In addition, we opened our
first optical retail shop under our own trade name of “EF /%
& " in Shenzhen, China in May 2019 which is an important
milestone to start our Optical Business in the PRC. We also
opened another new "E5F % & " optical retails shop in Beijing,
China in September 2019.

The Watches Business was continuously affected by the keen
competition from online sales of watches products and the
persistent slowdown in economic growth in the PRC. As at
30th June 2019, the Group operated 6 (30th June 2018: 10)
watches retails shops in the PRC. The Group will continue to
adjust the locations and products branding of the watches
retails shops and close down non-performing watches retail
shops to improve the shop productivity and cost efficiencies
of the Watches Business.

Segmental loss from this business segment during the Year
was approximately HK$10.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.0% as compared to approximately HK$12.4
million in the same period last year. The decrease in segmental
loss is mainly due to the effective cost control measures and
the improvement of the profitability of retail shops.

Apart from the Optical Business, the Group also owned a
34.5% (2018: 28%) equity interest of Hong Kong Optical
Company Limited (“HK Optical”) which is principally engaged
in trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products and
owns the trade name of "X&R# Hong Kong Optical” in
Hong Kong. According to the unaudited management account
of HK Optical for the twelve months ended 30th June 2019,
the unaudited revenue of HK Optical during the Year was
approximately HK$49.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 5.6% as compared to approximately HK$46.7
million in the same period last year. HK Optical recorded an
unaudited profit of approximately HK$2.1 million for the Year
(2018: loss of approximately HK$3.0 million).

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

However, due to the mass protests and civil unrest in Hong
Kong since June 2019, we expect there will be a marked
deterioration in the retail sector in Hong Kong and our Optical
Business in Hong Kong will be impacted negatively in the
coming year. On the other hand, the year-long US-China
trade war continues to weaken the growth of gross domestic
product in both Hong Kong and the PRC and will eventually
dampen the people’'s consumption and retails sales. We will
closely monitor the operating results of the optical retail shops
and will close down the non-performing retail shops in the
coming year. By operating our new optical retail shops in
Shenzhen and Beijing, we note that there is a demand of
high quality optical products in the PRC. We are cautiously
optimistic about the Optical Business in the PRC in the long
run and will seek opportunities to open new optical retail shops
in good locations in the PRC next year.

Trading Securities

Below is a table setting out the list of the trading securities
which the Directors consider as material held by the Group
as at 30th June 2019:
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AAZTA Hx&E HE&E HE&E
BEf RZB-1% RZB-1F R-F-NF
558 Kx88 R-B-1% KB=tR  AA=tH REZTR AEEQTE rEE
fik ZEAL ~B=1H BEE FEE R5E%E RH2RER BERE
RRENAAR i EMRuI%E RAHA (B &E1) A ZEAHY ZEAL  BEZEAE  WE/(FB)  ZRELA
(approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately — (approximately  (approximately  (approximately
%) HK$'000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HK$'000)
(%) (o) (B 47%) (B 4%) (Ba%) (HoTEr) BHTET)
First Credit Finance 2 Bermuda 150,000,000 41 6,900 1.0 18 794 2,551) -
Group Limited
Z-ERLREE BRE
ERARA
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Notes:

The percentage is calculated with reference to the then latest
monthly return as at 30th June 2019 of the investee company
publicly available on the website of the Stock Exchange (where
applicable).

First Credit Finance Group Limited (“First Credit”) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in money lending business
and securities trading business. The shares of First Credit
(stock code: 8215) are listed on GEM. As disclosed in the
latest annual report of First Credit, the revenue of the First
Credit was approximately HK$92.8 million for the year ended
31st December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$116.2 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 20.2% compared to
the same period in last year. First Credit recorded a profit for
the year of approximately HK$25.9 million for the year ended
31st December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$52.9 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 51.0% compared to
the same period in last year.

In connection with the re-focusing of the Group’s business
operations as announced on 25th May 2016, the Company
decided to change the purpose of holding First Credit from
short-term trading to long term investments. For the purpose
of complying with the applicable accounting standards, the
securities investments of First Credit were included in trading
securities as current assets in the consolidated balance sheet
for the accounting purpose despite the purpose of holding is a
long-term investment.

On 24th November 2017, First Credit announced that the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC")
had exercised its powers under Section 8(1) of the Securities
and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the
Laws of Hong Kong) to direct the Stock Exchange to suspend
all dealings in the shares of First Credit with effect from 9:00
a.m. on 24th November 2017. Based on the best estimate
of the Directors, the fair value of the shares of First Credit
was approximately HK$0.046 per share (2018: approximately
HK$0.063 per share) as at 30th June 2019.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As disclosed in the latest interim report of First Credit for the
six-month period ended 30th June 2019, after considering the
prevailing market situation and the business performance of
Asia Wealth Securities Limited, First Credit decided to cease
the securities brokerage business. First Credit is proactively
exploring further potential investment opportunities, including
but not limited to investments in bonds, debt instruments,
listed equity securities or project-based investments, subject
to the prevailing market condition and taking into account the
interest of the First Credit and its shareholders as a whole.
Looking forward, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for
its shareholders and enhance its position in the competitive
industry, First Credit will continue to strive for maintaining
revenue growth and credit quality on the basis of its experience
in money lending business. Meanwhile, First Credit will closely
monitor its capital base from time to time and ensure sufficient
funding is maintained through various means to capture and
support different potential opportunities.

The Group recorded a fair value loss arising from the change in
fair value of trading securities of approximately HK$5.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$108.6 million) for the Year. Such loss
was mainly attributable to the poor performance of certain
investments during the Year. In particular, the investments
in the shares of First Credit recorded the fair value loss of
approximately HK$2.6 million during the Year. As a result, the
overall segment loss of the securities investment segment
was approximately HK$4.6 million (2018: segment loss of
approximately HK$108.4 million) during the Year.

BEEBNWR DN
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Other financial assets

Below is a table setting out the list of the material other
financial assets held by the Group as at 30th June 2019:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

Hthe@MEE
FTEAR-E-NEXA=+RALE
B2 EAEMEBEET X :

exempted limited partnership established in accordance with
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of Cayman Islands
offering limited partnership interests for the purpose of
obtaining capital appreciation through making private equity
investments mainly in the consumer sector across Greater
China and South East Asia, as well as in non-Asian enterprises
that have a strong exposure to Asian consumers market. Cassia
Il intends to target companies that it believes will benefit from
the growing disposable income of the Asian middle class and
can capture the behavioural consumer trends that follow such
growing household wealth and structured equity transactions
primarily in Greater China, Thailand, Indonesia, Vietnam and the
Philippines. Up to 30th June 2019, the Group has subscribed
for the limited partnership interest of Cassia Il of approximately
US$7.9 million (approximately HK$61.2 million) (2018: same).

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Percentage of
total issued Percentage to
share capital the Group's
of the Percentage to Percentageto  total other
investee the Group's  the Group's financial
Number of  companyas Fairvalue as total assetsas net assets as assetsas  Changein Return of Dividend
Name of investee Place of sharesheld at30th June at30th June at30th June at30th June at 30th June fair value invested  income for
company Notes incorporation by the Group 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 for the Year capital the Year
EHRELR TS ]
RZB-n% L& kEEE R-Z-hE
AA=TH RZB-hE RZB-AE RKRA=1H
558 BET R-E-1EF ARA=tR RAZTAH AteR
s  RAEE KA=TA neE BEE  HEHE AEE 2RE AEE
HRENTER M ZRAYBE  RAEA ZEAE  zZARE  ZEAM zEAL  2EAM  ATE%®  EAEHR REMA
(approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately  (approximately (approximately (approximately  (approximately
%) HK$'000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HK$'000) HK$'000)
(Bd%) HoTEn) (HE4%) (B 4%) (Bh%) BatEn) HEHTELD) BHTERD
Cassia Investment 1 Cayman Islands N/A N/A 71987 1.0 19 752 (19,121.2) 38,506.6 -
Limited REHE AR TER
Partnership Il
Promising Social 2 Caymanlslnds 1982215 21.08 3170 less than 0.1 0.1 33 (264.0 - -
Media Private RE2ES SRO1
Equity Fund
Derivative financial 2~ NJ/A N/A N/A 20684 03 0.5 215 4223 - -
instruments
fTEEMIA TER TER TER
9,574.1 13 25 1000 18,968.9) 38,506.6 -
Notes: (T
Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il (“Cassia II”) is an 1. Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il

([Cassia | N AR ERESHERRERE
TEBEELINIZEREBERAES
¥ FHANERABHEZTZEBY R
AFERRETHEBETENRRE
MEBMEHEAEREEBNIER N E
CEETLERARE AESERIEE -
Cassia I ERER BB T NPE
EEAYRERKABSZERFATHZRLAIE
ERELFILIREVESRRAMTRMHBEE
BEZRE URETEMRAFE  F
B -HE BEEAFEFEENGERBMERE
RPG-BE-_E—NE~NA=ZFTH 'K
SEERBECassialZBERAEBEZLT.9
BEELHE2BEBBL)(ZE—NF:
R e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Promising Social Media Private Equity Fund (the “PSM Fund”)
is a close-ended investment fund incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5th February 2014 under the laws of the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. The
PSM Fund is not a regulated mutual fund for the purposes of
the Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
principal investment objective of the PSM Fund is to maximize
capital growth through investing businesses which are engaged
in or derive a significant proportion of their income from the
field of social media. The PSM Fund commenced operation on
29th April 2015. Weluck Development Limited (“Weluck”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company first invested in the
PSM Fund in April 2015 and subscribed a total of 1,982.215
class A shares of the PSM Fund (the "PSM Shares”) with a
total investment cost of approximately HK$19.5 million. The
manager of the Fund (the “Fund Manager") had been delegated
authority to manage the Fund.

Since the subscription of the PSM Shares by Weluck, the fair
value of the PSM Fund significantly decreased because of the
under performance of the PSM Fund. As informed by the Fund
Manager in December 2018, in view of the real litigation risks
and regulatory risks surrounding the Fund Manager’s holding
company and the fact that the underlying investment was loss
making, the Fund Manager decided to divest the underlying
investment held by the PSM Fund at a price significantly below
the its investment cost. In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the
Fund Manager (the “Purchaser” and is an independent third
party of the Group) agreed to provide conditional offer (“Offer”)
to buy-back the PSM Shares held by Weluck at a consideration
of approximately HK$17.8 million by reference to Weluck's
sharing of latest available audited net asset of the PSM Fund
as at 31st December 2017.

2.

BEEBNWR DN

Promising Social Media Private Equity
Fund([PSME&DER -_ZT—-—NFE A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

On 1st March 2019, Weluck accepted the Offer to dispose the
PSM Shares at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million
(the "Disposal”). The Purchaser shall settle the consideration
of the Disposal to Weluck in cash by 34 monthly instalments,
whereby (i) approximately HK$1,483,000 shall be paid on or
before 29th March 2019 and (ii) approximately HK$494,000 on
or before the last business day of each consecutive month from
April 2019 to December 2021. Completion of the Disposal is
conditional upon the Purchaser having paid the consideration of
the Disposal to Weluck in full in accordance with the schedule
described above. The PSM Shares will be transferred to the
Purchaser on receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in
full by Weluck. In the opinion of the Directors, the arrangement
constitute a derivatives contract to dispose the PSM Shares at
a fixed consideration in the future and should be recognized as
a derivative financial instrument (“DFI"”). Based on the business
valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
which was not connected with the Group, the fair value of
the DFI was approximately HK$15.5 million in March 2019.
The fair value of the DFI would be recognised as a gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group
and recognized as the other financial assets on the consolidated
balance sheet of the Group over the time proportionally from
March 2019 to December 2021.

Taking into account (i) the fair value of the DFI of approximately
HK$15.5 million would be recognised as a gain of the Group over
the time proportionally from March 2019 to December 2021; (ii)
the unsatisfactory performance of the investment of the PSM
Fund; and (iii) the constant cash inflow that will be brought by
the Disposal, the Directors consider it is appropriate and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole to
accept the Offer made by the Purchaser to effect the Disposal.

Looking forward, the financial and investment markets are
continually affected by the year-long US-China trade war.
The Group will take a cautious approach in managing the
investment portfolio with the aim to reduce the risk and
achieve a better return to the Group.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong
Kong during the Year. As at 30th June 2019, the Group had
loans receivable of approximately HK$65.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$57.1 million), under the money lending
business and recognized interest income (excluded inter-
segment sales) of approximately HK$7.7 million (2018:
approximately HK$7.3 million). It accounted for approximately
12.5% (2018: approximately 8.4%) of the Group’s revenue
during the Year. Loans receivable are interest bearing at rates
ranging from 3% to 18% per annum (2018: 3% to 20% per
annum). The segment loss of this business segment was
approximately HK$13.0 million during the Year while the Group
recorded a segment profit of approximately HK$6.0 million for
the same period last year.

The increase in segmental loss was mainly attributable to an
increase in expected credit loss allowance for loans receivable
of approximately HK$18.7 million for the Year. The significantly
increase in expected credit loss allowance for loans receivable
is principally due to an increase in loans receivable which have
past due during the Year.

Due to the unstable financial and investment market and the
highly competitive business environment, the Group will take
a cautious approach to grant new loans in the coming year.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.1 million (2018: approximately
HK$1.0 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted
for approximately 1.8% (2018: approximately 1.2%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was approximately
HK$2.9 million (2018: approximately HK$4.7 million) during the
Year. The decrease in segment profit is due to the decrease
in fair value gain of investment properties by approximately
HK$1.7 million during the Year. There were no additions or
disposals of the investment properties during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Entertainment business

This segment primarily relates to artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Revenue from
this business segment during the Year was approximately
HK$5.8 million (2018: approximately HK$9.1 million). It
accounted for approximately 9.4% (2018: approximately
10.5%) of the Group's revenue during the Year. The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to the decrease of revenue from
artiste commission income by approximately HK$2.3 million
during the Year. Segmental loss of approximately of HK$0.6
million was recorded during the Year (2018: segmental gain of
approximately HK$2.9 million). The increase in loss from this
segment was due to the decrease in revenue during the Year.

Financial Printing

During the Year, the Group commenced the business of
financial printing services (“Financial Printing Business”)
to provide the services of type-setting, translation, printing,
design, distribution of financial print products and other related
services to the financial sectors in Hong Kong through Formex
Financial Press Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Taking into account the increase in number of listed
companies and the increase in demand of financial printing
services in Hong Kong, the Directors are of the view that the
commencement of the Financial Printing Business will be a
good opportunity for the Group to diversify its income streams.
During the Year, the Group recorded turnover and segmental
loss of approximately HK$3.6 million and approximately
HK$8.5 million respectively in this segment. It account for
approximately 5.9% of the Group's revenue during the Year.

Discontinued operation — Securities Brokerage
Business

The Company engaged in the provision of securities brokerage
services and securities margin financing to clients (”Securities
Brokerage Business”) during the year ended 30th June 2018
through its wholly owned subsidiary China Jianxin Financial
Services Limited (“China Jianxin Financial”). China Jianxin
Financial is a company licensed under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
(the “SFO") to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

References are made to the Company’s 2017 annual report
dated 29th September 2017, the Company's 2017/2018
interim report dated 27th February 2018 and the Company’s
announcement dated 17th May 2018, in which it was
mentioned that, among other things, in late June 2017, there
was a sharp decline in the share price of certain stocks held
by China Jianxin Financial as collateral securities for its margin
clients, with the percentage decline in share price of such
stocks ranging from 35% to approximately 89% (the “June
Incident”). As a result of the June Incident, a number of China
Jianxin Financial's accounts receivable arising from Securities
Brokerage Business became under collateralized and its excess
liquid capital also decreased. China Jianxin Financial thus made
margin calls with its margin loan clients. Following the June
Incident and the deterioration of China Jianxin Financial's
margin loans during and after the June Incident and the related
significant drop in its liquid capital, China Jianxin Financial
received a letter from the SFC, wherein the SFC, among other
things, had identified certain deficiencies of China Jianxin
Financial’s margin loan operations and its failure to comply
with certain requirements under the Code of Conduct. In
this connection, the SFC instructed China Jianxin Financial to
refrain from providing further margin lending or other form of
financial accommodation to clients until it had fully complied
with the applicable Code of Conduct requirements. The SFC
also instructed China Jianxin Financial to prevent further
deterioration of its financial position, including maintaining
sufficient cash reserves to maintain its business operations for
areasonable amount of time, ceasing to apply imprudent margin
lending practices, and tightening and formalising its margin
lending policy. China Jianxin Financial undertook to the SFC to
implement the measures required by the SFC to address the
identified deficiencies and risk concerns satisfactorily within a
reasonable period of time, failure of which would result in the
SFC taking further action including the imposition of conditions
on China Jianxin Financial's licence. Nevertheless, given the
current restrictions imposed by the SFC on China Jianxin
Financial, and the consequential loss of clientele, significant
drop in its business and revenue and the continuing increase
in the loss of the Securities Brokerage Business, the Group
ceased the Securities Brokerage Business on 30th June 2018.

BEEBNWR DN

ZiRMARNRAHA-_ZT—+tFNLAZ
TABZ-_Z—+tEEHK ARAFABH
BZE—NFZAZF+tRHZZZE—+
F/ - N\FPRHRERARQAE B H
BT N\FRA+tHZAMH EF
g EFaER _E—+EXATH"
TEEECRAHFERTFIFERME
RzBETHREZRERBTN® B@K
EREZTHEED LN T35% = 489%
([RAEH) BARASNASEH PEHESR
CHEZTFAELCEBELE 2 ZHERE
HEBSEBRITEREBEIINARBDE S TR
LR FBHEEEREREFEER
REEMNMREEZ R ANASHZU LS
BREemsFREFNASASHEHM
My BBELRERSESHEKNE XK
TERELHMEEZSESRH EPE
Eg(HEPeBERRYPEEEERZ
FTREFREBGES THEBREKREE
TFTRTIEAZETHRE - EENM  FE
CEETRFREGERZLEARFIEMR
E—FPHEERKEMEAN 2T HaE -
EZHE2EETEARSTEMNBEET AL -
BEeREERPEEEEREMRILEE
BHERRAE—FTEL(BERAERMER
BRARRSREBUNESEBEE) T
BETTEEFREERIT AN KK ERM
FREFREFBRE -FREEES®ME
MEESAEEMREETE R 2E MU
REERBANERBADEENERR R
BT TREEREESHERE—
$TH BEHPEEESREMNER
- R EXRBESRBHPHEE
CRBEMNZES UEREmMEHRZFEF
MEA EEBRRBZABTITRERELFL
REBBBEFERERN ASFER-Z —
NERNRAZTHRIEBHEELER -

EFRAT(EMERAT
—E-NEER

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group recorded the loss before tax from the discontinued
Securities and Brokerage Business of approximately HK$3.1
million (2018: approximately HK$59.3 million) during the
Year. The decrease in loss from the Securities and Brokerage
Business during the Year is due to the write off of the goodwill
and trading rights held in the Stock Exchange in relation to this
business of approximately HK$28.1 million and approximately
HK$11.4 million, respectively during the year ended 30th June
2018 and there were no such write off of the goodwill and
trading rights occurred during the Year.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 35.4% (2018: approximately
65.9%) of the Group's revenue during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year is approximately HK$12.6 million
(2018: approximately HK$12.7 million). There is no material
fluctuation during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year decreased by
approximately 33.8% to approximately HK$74.0 million as
compared to approximately HK$111.7 million in the same
period last year. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the absence of the payment of the directors and
staff bonus of approximately HK$35.6 million in connection
with the Disposal of the Film Library and the absence of
the share based compensation expenses of approximately
HK$10.5 million in relation to the grant of share options under
the Share Option Scheme (as defined below) recorded in the
same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Update on the adjustment to the consideration of AP
Group Investment Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Acquisition Agreement”) with two
independent third party vendors, namely Very Easy Limited
("Very Easy") and City Link Consultancy Limited (“City Link"),
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners, namely Chan
Sze Long (“Chan”) and Lim Wah Elsa (“Lim"), as guarantors to
acquire 51% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (“AP Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the AP Acquisition Agreement) (the “AP
Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the provision of education and training programs
in relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

On 13th June 2016, (i) Fragrant River as the vendor and the
Company as the guarantor of Fragrant River; and (ii) Lucky
Famous, an independent third party, entered into a disposal
agreement (the “AP Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which
Fragrant River sold to Lucky Famous the 51% of the equity
interest of AP Group at the consideration of HK$20,400,000
(the “Consideration”) subject to downward adjustments as
described below (the “AP Disposal”). The amount of the
Consideration was the same as the consideration for the AP
Acquisition. Completion of the AP Disposal took place on 1st
July 2016.

Under the AP Disposal Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the AP Group attributable to
owners of the AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016
to 31st December 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017") (which would
only include income or gain generated by activities in the
ordinary and usual course of business of AP Group and its
subsidiaries) (the “FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is less than
HK$16,000,000, the Group should pay to Lucky Famous (or
to its order) the Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in
cash within 14 days after the audited consolidated financial
statements of AP Group for the period of FY 2016 & 2017 (“FY
2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts”) are available.

BEEEFNWR DM

HAEEHEEERER A A
ﬁi@%ﬂi%ﬁ)ﬁw
RZE—RAF+A+=ZH FILRE
t(EZER)BER2BITEI] AQa2E&
MEAR)EMBBILE=HE A Very
Easy Limited ([Very Easyl) K City Link
Consultancy Limited ([ City Link]) & 1% %
BEENRREZEB ARBBURTE]D
KmE(MRZ L) FAERANFIZER
E(EHEERZD) UKBEHEE
TRAEBRAR(EHEER]S1%KE K
18 /% 20,400,0007% 7T (7] 3t & 9f W B8 3 =

PrcREEMNA THE) (EHKESF
B - EHKSEREMNBAREIERE

BRTPBEEFREAHEERTENRAER
RAMBAERBIELE -EHRBER
ER-F-—AFF+_ATHEHAREK"

RZE—XR"E~A+=8" %/I(T/Fﬁ'j
Té‘ﬁ)&ﬂiﬂj(f’ﬂ%%l%ﬁﬂ%)\) ;

¥ S % = /5 Lucky Famousz] 37 %TZ% E%
(IBBEEBE]) B F T M Lucky
Famous HE BB £ B1% 2 IR KRB
#$20,400,00078 ([ E]) (AT & T X A
mm THARB)((EHHEFE])) RES
FHEHKBEHE 2 AREMAR B L
EEBER_ZE—"FLtA—HEK-

)E]_Eli:l:f* _ -
HEHBA(ZE-—R"EZZ—t8F])
EHEBEEEARLMEHSELCRZLR
R EREN(ZEMNSESEENEE

EFEWMBARAR —MKRERBAEXRBHBRESD
ZEBEENRASIKE) ([ZF—XK K

ZE—+8FFmM]) K 16,000,000%8
T ASEREEEHSERE - — X
RZE -t FHRENCEZRRENB
HKER(TZZE-AR_E—+tHERER
Bk B 1)1 14 B A A Lucky Famous (3% iR #&
HESIUMRAFAINAESE(ESR
RTX) e

AL EMERAT
—E-NEER

BEFR

2



22

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The adjustment amount under the AP Disposal Agreement
(the “Adjustment Amount”) will be determined in accordance
with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A"” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and
“NP" means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY
2016 & 2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP" shall be
deemed to be zero.

The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by Lucky Famous, adjusted for any non-recurring
items.

Such downward adjustment mechanism for the Consideration
under the AP Disposal Agreement depending on the actual
performance of the AP Group for the FY 2016 & 2017 is virtually
of the same terms as the downward adjustment mechanism
of the consideration in respect of the AP Acquisition from
Very Easy and City Link under the AP Acquisition Agreement.
Details of such acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 12th October 2015.

In the event there is a shortfall between the FY 2016 &
2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the AP Group for FY
2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the AP Acquisition
Agreement, an adjustment amount under such agreement
(the “Contingent Consideration Receivable”) is payable by
Very Easy and City Link, being the vendors under the AP
Acquisition, to the Group within 7 days after the FY 2016 &
2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the AP Acquisition
Agreement are available. The obligations of Very Easy and
City Link to pay such adjustment amount to the Group are
guaranteed by their respective beneficial owners.
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As mentioned above, in the event there is a shortfall between
the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the
AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the
AP Disposal Agreement, an adjustment amount under such
agreement (the “Contingent Consideration Payable”) is
payable by the Group to Lucky Famous within 14 days after
the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the
AP Disposal Agreement are available.

On 12th June 2018, the Group received a demand letter (the
“Demand Letter”) from Lucky Famous whereby it was alleged
that the AP Group recorded a net loss of HK$189,799 based
on the alleged FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts dated 11th
June 2018. As set out in the Demand Letter, Lucky Famous
demanded Fragrant River or the Company to fully pay the
amount of HK$20,400,000 (the "Alleged Claim”), being
the alleged Adjustment Amount pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the AP Disposal Agreement, to Lucky Famous
on or before 26th June 2018, and upon default, steps would
be taken by Lucky Famous to enforce its rights under the AP
Disposal Agreement without further notice.

In response to the Lucky Famous Demand Letter, Fragrant
River and the Company have through the letter from their
legal advisers dated 22nd June 2018 stated that they would
defend the purported claim of Lucky Famous for the payment
of the Adjustment Amount under the AP Disposal Agreement
as alleged by it.

In light of the Lucky Famous Demand Letter and the alleged
net loss of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017, and in order to
protect the interest of the Group, but without admitting any
liability to Lucky Famous under the AP Disposal Agreement,
Fragrant River issued corresponding demand letters all dated
22nd June 2018 (collectively, the “Fragrant River Demand
Letters”) to Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim, respectively
demanding the payment of an amount of HK$20,400,000 (the
“Fragrant River Claim”) to Fragrant River within 7 days from
the date of the Fragrant River Demand Letters pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the AP Acquisition Agreement, and
if default, Fragrant River would take further action to protect
its interest without further notice.
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On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous as the plaintiff commenced
court action (HCA No. 1646 of 2018) at the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong against Fragrant River
as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd defendant
(the “Lucky Famous Action”). Lucky Famous claimed against
Fragrant River and the Company for (a) the Adjustment Amount
of HK$20,400,000; (b) interests; (c) costs; and (d) further and/
or other relief.

Notwithstanding the Fragrant River Demand Letters, no
payment under the AP Acquisition Agreement is received
from any of Very Easy, City Link, Chan or Lim up to the date
of this report.

Lucky Famous applied to amend the writ and statement of
claim to join Chan and Lim as defendants in the Lucky Famous
Actions for certain claims against them. The Court allowed
the application of Lucky Famous on 24th September 2019.

The Company is in the course of seeking legal advice in
respect of the Lucky Famous Action and any possible action
that may be taken against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or
Lim in respect of the Fragrant River Claim. The Company will
keep the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company
informed of any further significant developments as and when
appropriate.

Without admitting any liability to Lucky Famous under the
AP Disposal Agreement and also without prejudice to any
right against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or Lim under
the AP Acquisition Agreement, the Group has recorded the
fair value of the Contingent Consideration Receivable and
Contingent Consideration Payable, at Nil (2018: approximately
HK$3.8 million) and approximately HK$20.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$20.4 million) respectively as at 30th June
2019 in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, which is based on the best estimation of the
Directors taking into account the financial statements of AP
Group in 2016 and 2017, the discount rate and other factors
in estimating the fair value.
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Outlook

Looking forward, the Group will continue to produce and invest
in quality films and movies to capture the opportunities of
China entertainment market and we will continue to explore
cooperation and investment opportunities in artiste and
model management and organisation of concert with an aim
to enrich our portfolio and broaden our income stream in the
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights business segment and entertainment business
segment.

The year-long US-China trade war and social unrest in Hong
Kong continues to weaken the retail sector in Hong Kong
and the PRC. We will closely monitor the operating results of
the retail shops and will adjust shops locations and products
mix, and close down the non-performing retail shops in the
coming year. Nevertheless, we are still cautiously optimistic
about the Optical Business in the PRC in the long run and will
seek opportunities to open new optical retail shops in good
locations in the PRC next year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had cash balances of
approximately HK$178.2 million (2018: approximately
HK$522.3 million). As at 30th June 2019, the Group had total
assets of approximately HK$724.7 million (2018: approximately
HK$1,081.4 million).

The decrease in cash balance and total asset of the Group
during the Year was mainly to the payment of special dividend
of totally approximately HK$272.0 million on 22nd October
2018 and the payment of special interim dividend of totally
approximately HK$136.0 million on 10th May 2019 to the
Shareholders.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2019 was
approximately 0.002% (2018: approximately 0.003%), which
was calculated on the basis of the total debt (including
borrowings and obligations under finance lease) divided by
total equity of the Group.
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Finance cost for the Year was Nil (2018: approximately HK$3.1
million). The significant decrease of finance cost was mainly
due to the absence of the Group's borrowing outstanding
during the Year.

In light of the fact that most of the Group's transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of
these currencies closely.

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had Shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30th June 2018: approximately
HK$9.1 million). The Shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30th June 2018:
906,632,276 shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year (2018: Nil).

Material acquisition and disposal of assets

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal
of assets during the Year.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2019, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th June 2019, the Group employed 116 staff (2018:
110). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As announced on 31st July 2018, the Board proposed to
change the existing name of the Company from “Universe
International Financial Holdings Limited” to “Universe
Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited” and to
adopt "EFIRE (L EBEERAF]" as the secondary name
in Chinese of the Company to replace its existing secondary
name in Chinese "EF BB £ @MIZR AR A 7" (the “Change
of Company Name"). The Change of Company Name provides
the Company with a better identification and strengthen the
Company's corporate image, which will benefit the Company’s
future business development. The Change of Company Name
was approved by the Shareholders at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 17th September 2018.

As announced on 16th October 2018, the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name and the Certificate of
Secondary Name were issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda on 26th September 2018 certifying the change of
English name of the Company from “Universe International
Financial Holdings Limited” to “Universe Entertainment and
Culture Group Company Limited”, and the adoption of “EF
IRET (L EEBR A A" as the secondary name in Chinese of
the Company to replace its secondary name in Chinese “&
FHRESEERBRAR". The Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company
was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on
11th October 2018 confirming the registration of the new
English name “Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited” and the new Chinese name " F1R%4 4t
E£EAR QA" in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
in compliance with the Listing Rules (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1)

(2)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually,
a "Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe
for shares.

(@) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of
its subsidiary or any invested entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

fE R R T &

RER-_ZF-—Z=ZF+-_A-RBTZK
REFRELBBZ HREARER

ZINUN

BRI £ AR BB R B KR

—RBEREE (B EL)  BRE
FEZFHEBMT

(1)

(2)

BRETE ZE W
BRENEZENEEARDAMR
MBET22BA(ERRTX)E
R fE R KB R R E ]
RARBZEBRIAZHDR
AR E -

BTS2 A

EZg RBEREAFERATEMZ
BAEH HAKERTAREER
BEERMEEBZERALIZ
BAD BTEAEBREARBRD -

(@) ARAE- HEMMERBHE
MREERBZENEZRBIES -
BREARR)AR2A EE
MHEARKKREER ZEM
MITES:

by AAB EEMMHMBEARLME
MREEEBZCEMERTES
(BRBILFAITES)

() ANEBEMKERASFEMME
EERB  AMNE R R HE
=

O AEBREAREERZEA
B



(3)

Management Discussion and Analysis

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of
the Group.

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(a)

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share option granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes for the time being of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Share options of the Company which
are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates
of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Shareholders has been obtained.

(3)

(e)

(f)
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes for the time being of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant to each
grantee must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number
of shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of the
share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10 year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share options
offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share
option is made and shall be at least the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’'s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided
that the subscription price should not be lower than the
nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 57, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong"” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 42, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in 2013, he has over 10 years’ experience in
the field of financial reporting, financial management and audit
experience in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
Mr. Lam is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(“ACCA"), an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
the Group in August 2013.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 78, has over 30 years of experience
in the film distribution industry. Mr. Hung was the founder of
Delon International Film Corporation and has been its general
manager since June 2004. Mr. Hung was the Organizing
Committee Chairman of the 11th and 12th Hong Kong Film
Awards from 1991 to 1993 and from 1993 to 1995, Mr. Hung
was the chairman of the board of directors of Hong Kong
Film Awards Association Limited. Mr. Hung is currently the
chairman of The Federation of Motion Film Producers of
Hong Kong Limited and the chairman of Hong Kong Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Hung is appointed
as a vice chairman of the eighth Guangdong Film Association
since November 2016 and a deputy minister of Guangdong’s
Association For Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong,
Hong Kong & Macao Cultural Professional Committee. In
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recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong film industry,
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR") in 2005. From April 2007 to March 2013,
Mr. Hung was appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a
member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council. Mr.
Hung is also a member of HKSAR Election Committee and he
was appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a non-official
member of the Working Group on Manufacturing Industries,
Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries
under the Economic Development Commission from January
2013 to January 2019. Mr. Hung was a non-executive director
of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September
2011 to January 2014; an independent non-executive director
of Hengten Networks Group Limited (stock code: 136), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from January 2013 to October 2015; and an independent non-
executive director of Freeman Fintech Corporation Limited
(stock code: 279), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from January 2013 to January 2017. Mr.
Hung was also an executive Director from October 2013 to
June 2017. Mr. Hung resigned as an executive Director on 2nd
June 2017 and was re-appointed as the executive Director on
1st October 2017. Mr. Hung re-designated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director on 1st February 2019
and resigned as non-executive Director on 31st July 2019.
Currently, Mr. Hung is the executive director of EJE (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101), a company listed
on GEM, an independent non-executive director of China Star
Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; an independent
non-executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(stock code: 913), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange; an independent non-executive director of
KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226), a company
listed on GEM, an independent non-executive director of Miko
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and an
independent non-executive director of Enerchina Holdings
Limited (stock code: 622), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 49, is currently the
managing director of Sheng Shi Da Investment Group (" &K
Z=E"), a private investment group registered in Hong Kong.
Since December 2016, Mr. CK Lam has been an independent
non-executive director of Nanfang Communication Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1617), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the chief executive
officer and an executive director of Asia Television Holdings
Limited (stock code: 707) from May 2016 to March 2017 and
acted as its chief financial officer from September 2015 to May
2016; and an executive director of Ming Lam Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1106) from August 2015 to November 2016, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. CK Lam holds a bachelor’s degree of science
in accounting awarded by Brigham Young University—Hawaii
in 1996. He also obtained a master’'s degree of science in
e-Commerce from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the HKICPA and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
CK Lam has over 22 years of experience in accounting and
corporate finance. He joined the Group in December 2013.

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 42, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded
by the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
1999. Mr. Choi also obtained a master degree of business
administration awarded by the University of Hong Kong in
2014. Mr. Choi is a fellow of the ACCA and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Choi has over 15 years of experience in
accounting and company secretarial field. Mr. Choi was
the financial controller and company secretary of Global
Token Limited (formerly known as Global Energy Resources
International Group Limited) (stock code: 8192) from March
2015 to January 2018, the shares of which are listed on GEM.
He was also the independent non-executive director of G
Neptune Berhad, a company listed on the ACE Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad from May 2014 to May 2017. He
joined the Group in December 2013.
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Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 52, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor's degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania.
Mr. Tang has been an independent non-executive director
of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 530), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since September 2006 and an independent non-executive
director of Jete Power Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8133),
a company listed on GEM, since April 2015. Mr. Tang was an
independent non-executive director of KSL Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 8170), a company listed on GEM, from March
2017 to May 2018. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group Limited
(Stock code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange from 26th July 2017 to 1st June 2019. He joined
the Group in October 2017.

Mr. CHONG Ki Ming, aged 38, is a financial consultant.
Mr. Chong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science Business
Administration and Master of Business Administration from the
Marshall School of Business, University of Southern California,
USA. Mr. Chong also completed the Global Executive MBA
Program jointly offered by the Marshall School of Business,
University of Southern California and the Antai College of
Economics and Management, Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
Mr. Chong is a Certified Financial Consultant of the Institute
of Financial Consultants. Mr. Chong is currently the general
manager of Kam Yuen (Frozen Food) Limited, a frozen food
distributor in Hong Kong. He is also the founder and director
of Perseus Strategic Capital Limited, a licensed money lending
company in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in December
2017 and retired on 21st December 2018.

Mr. WONG Cheuk Wai, Jason, aged 44, has an extensive
experience in the property investment industry. Mr. Wong
holds a degree of Master of Science in Hotel and Tourism
Management. Mr. Wong is currently a director at Miracle World
Holdings Limited and Wiselande (International) Development
Limited. He joined the Group in December 2017 and retired
on 21st December 2018.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and (ii)
code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEQO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEOQ. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Group’s strategies.
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TRERBE

Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(a) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction
and strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(iii) policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be
material by the Board.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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financial controls, compliance and risk management:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

the approval of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue
of new securities, other than in accordance with the
terms of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive
schemes adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

the appointment of the Chairman;

recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

the appointment or removal of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).

(c)
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(f)  delegation of authority:

(i)  changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board,;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(iii)  matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 31 to 34 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters
of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non- executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of
the corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time
to time.

All current Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi Wing Koon and
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors’ duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she is fully aware of his/her
roles, functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and
the governance policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors
are kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by
the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
shall retire at the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term of three years pursuant to code
provision A4.1 of the CG Code. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election in accordance with the provision
of the Listing Rules and the Bye-law(s). At least one-third of
Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company's
annual general meeting.

Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"”) and Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. 7 board meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 7/7
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 7/7

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hung Cho Sing
(re-designated from executive Director
to non-executive Director on 1st February
2019 and resigned as non-executive
Director on 31st July 2019) 6/7

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Keung 717
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 717
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 717
Mr. Chong Ki Ming

(retired on 21st December 2018) 5/5
Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason

(retired on 21st December 2018) 4/5
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ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general

meetings and encourages their participation.

1 annual general meeting and 2 special general meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual
General
Meeting

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Kit Sun

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
(re-designated from executive
Director to non-executive Director
on 1st February 2019 and resigned
as non-executive Director on
31st July 2019)

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Keung

Mr. Choi Wing Koon

Mr. Tang Yiu Wing

Mr. Chong Ki Ming
(retired on 21st December 2018)

Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason
(retired on 21st December 2018)

BOARD COMMITTEES

VAl
VAl

1/1

11
1/1
1/1

N/A

N/A

Special
General
Meeting

2/2
2/2

2/2

1/2
2/2
0/2

0/1

0/1

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination

Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established
by the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman),
Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive
Director, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’'s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.
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TRERBE

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 11

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’'s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the CG Code in respect
of diversity of board members that has come into effect on
1st September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted
its diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board's composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company's corporate strategies.

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 1/1
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 1/1
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 11
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TRERBE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference
to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group's financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and
the attendances of the each committee member at these
meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 3/3
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 3/3
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards,
the interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31st December 2018 and annual consolidated
financial statements for the Year. Based on its review and
discussions with management and the external auditor, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated
financial statements for the Year were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and fairly present the
Group's financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control”
in this report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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TEERBE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Board must ensure that the Company
establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems to meet the objectives and safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and assets of the Company.
The internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failures to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis through
identifying and grading risk components, perceiving control
impact and facilitating remediation plan. The development of
our risk management and internal control systems are largely
based on the framework as set down by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSQO). The risk management framework, coupled with
our internal controls, ensures the risks associated with our
different business units are effectively monitored, and are in
line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group adopts both the top-down and bottom-up approach
to monitor the principal risks affecting the business as follows:

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its division on a quarterly basis
and establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks
identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control activities,
attending quarterly meetings with each division to
ensure principal risks are properly managed, and new
or changing risks are identified and documented.

3. The Board reviews and approves the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems on a regular basis.
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In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance, the
Board opposes to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant was engaged to conduct
areview on the internal control systems, which covers certain
procedures on the trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products and watches products, and makes recommendations
for improving and strengthening the internal control systems.
In addition, reviews on the Corporate Governance Practice
according to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and accounting
and financial reporting mechanism were conducted. The Board
will continue to work with the external consultant to discuss
and follow-up on the status of remediation of the internal
control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in
the coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls
and reports to the Board on such reviews. For the Year, the
Board considered that a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems had been conducted
and considered that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report from pages 87 to 99 of
this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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% B AN BN =
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NEERLBEBERET - RAFE E
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Fees payable

Services rendered Fr 12 4 IR 76 ENE R

HK$'000

FH& T

Audit services B iR 1,603
Non-audit services FEE R

e Interim results o R HIEE 260

e Annual results announcement s FEEBRNMH 50

1,913
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 31 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code")
as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will
be verified with the Company's share registrar in Hong Kong
(the “Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the
general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and
the relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

o At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such
notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the
notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days’ notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the Board, committees or an appointed
representative, will attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer questions of the Shareholders. The
Company will also invite representatives of the Auditors to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer the
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27th September
2019 ("Dividend Policy”) which shall take effect on 27th
September 2019. The Dividend Policy allows the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profits by provision of dividends
whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future
growth opportunities.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall consider
the following factors, among others, before proposing and
declaring dividends:

(i)  the Company's operation and financial performance;

(i)  the Company’s liquidity conditions;
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(i) the Company’s capital requirements and future funding
needs;

(iv) the Company’s contractual restrictions;
(v)  the Company’s availability of reserves; and
(vi) the prevailing economic climate.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the Listing Rules, Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time by the
Board and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount for any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.

AN 2z s S
il = %%/El*ﬁf%
(iiiy XAREBEAXREXEARESFTE:

(iv)i AXEEHRSG :
RRARABHRFEE: R

(vi) BRITEBERIR -

ARAELRBBETEAEBTARE AN

—ERFE - EWRA AR R EMER
AR BRAFOERBTREMRRAS -

EZe 8 TBHEREMBKE AR A
BERERACENES B IAREIRE
BREMEEREREAFTESRIRNM -

ERXHK

ARABZHABERKNEEARA D HR
BMRXMEARRR 2@ EER -

EFRAT(EMERAT
—E-NEER

55



56

Environmental, Social & Governance Report

BB #HEREREE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

As a company that aims to provide the best entertainment,
services and products to customers in Hong Kong, UNIVERSE
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED and its subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or “We")
is committed to sustain a stable corporate development
growth, while protecting environment and being socially
responsible and adhering to the highest standards of corporate
governance. Pursuant to the newly released requirement of
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting guide
("Environmental, Social and Governance Guide") in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities from
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group has
prepared the 2018-2019 Environmental Social and Corporate
Governance (thereafter “ESG"”) Report, covering the whole
range of the its business operation.

The scope of this report will cover the Group's initiatives on
further developing the concept of Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance to employees and clients, putting them
into practices in our daily operations and disclosing results as
a year-end summary over this covered period.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’s whole range
of business activities, including, video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
securities investment and financial printing business.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters, driving for ESG initiatives throughout the group,
and communicating our ESG performance result with our
stakeholders.

The reporting period of this report shall cover the period from
1st July 2018 to 30th June 2019.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT &
MATERIALITY IDENTIFICATION

The Group endeavours to develop its business sustainably,
and contribute positively to the environment and the society
where its business operates. The Group understands fully that
standalone effort is minimal and therefore see the engagement
of its stakeholders as essential.

To extend its efforts to a broader audience, the Group had
consulted both its internal and external stakeholders on its
potential impact on the environment and society as a result
of its business operations. The Group understands and values
relationship with customers and suppliers, and thus included
both parties as our consultation targets.

Furthermore, the Group conducted a materiality analysis in the
form of a management interview during the drafting process.
Particular sustainability related issues, which are material to
the Group, were identified during the process, and the results
shall be disclosed in later part of this ESG Report.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
well as how the Group communicate with them through a

variety of engagement channels during the year.

Internal Stakeholders

R HEBRERBRE
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HEBZENRERAMHEELNT
EXBERNERIINBRENDE - AKEHA
AREGREFPRHBENERKR 8K
P B RMANEEHER -

O AEBCREEBRERELEER
EEEBETEEUE SN BEPEINY
AEBEBEANKEANFRBELABEER
ERERENENEE HERERR
TEERBOWE -

TERBINFRAAEBEZRENERAE
BEREB-RI2ERBEFSERTN
EEB-

External Stakeholders

RE G E SN HE

° The Board o Shareholders

e EE® c KR

° Management o Investors

e EHIRE s KREE

° General Staff ° Customers

o EEEE e EF
° Local Community Groups
o  E MY EE

Engagement methods: SHERG %

Meetings, interviews direct mail, staff performance appraisal
interviews, internal publications, Annual General Meeting
("AGM"), special general meetings and announcements.

Table 1. Engaged Stakeholder list and methods
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STAKEHOLDERS® FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders' feedback on its ESG
approach and performance. For any suggestion or opinion,
please kindly send it to the Group through its communication
channels.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products while
generating revenue for our shareholders, and recognising the
importance and contributing to both the environment and local
community have always been one of our guiding principles.
ESG is thus considered a high priority within the Group, and
is especially championed by our senior management.

As mentioned, the Group is committed to minimize the impact
its operations may have imposed on the environment. In
order to monitor the progress, the Group started collecting
and reporting its ESG-related activities in the past reporting
periods. Since the 2016-2017 ESG report, the Group took a
step further and began to collect in-depth data for disclosure.
Due to the Group's operations in various business sectors
across multiple geographic regions, the complexity of data
collection and analysis has imposed challenges to responsible
departmental personnel. The Group had endeavoured to
engage internal and external stakeholders to build an extensive
database for ESG matters. The collected data was analysed
and assessed against the Group's operational performance,
to provide an accurate overview to the senior management to
implement improvement measures accordingly.

In summary, the result indicated the Group's trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical and watches products
(“Retail Business”), money lending, leasing of investment
properties, securities investment and financial printing
business do not involve in the production-related direct air,
water, or land pollutions, and thus do not contribute to any
material impact in these areas. The Group's video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights (“Film Business”) activity was also operated under
the Group's ESG provision, and complied to all local laws and
regulations in concern.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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The Group’s most relevant environmental issues identified
during this reporting period were the followings:

° Air emission;

° Electricity consumption;

° Non-hazardous Waste; and
° Water consumption.

The Group’'s internal environmental protection awareness
programme had consistently reminded and encouraged
employees and clients to join efforts into improving its
environmental performance. Details of such processes and
actions are described in the following sections.

Air Emission

The Group's primary business activities branch into Film
Business, Retail Business and financial printing business.
The business nature of the Group’s Film Business, Retail
Business and financial printing business does not involve
direct or significant emission of air and greenhouse gases
from industrial or combustion process. In other words, the
Group concluded that there is no material impact found,
through direct air emission, to the environment as a result
of its business operations. (Indirect carbon emission through
electricity consumption is measured and further details shall
be provided in the later section.)

Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine
the indirect emissions generated via its operations. The
assessment indicated that electricity and fuel consumption
(ie: Diesel, LPG and Petroleum) are two of the most significant
contributions to such. For instance, the hire of mobile
generators as a temporary power source for Film Business,
as well as own vehicles for transportation are main sources
for fuel consumption. The Group thus accords to the ESG
guideline suggestion to report on the captioned air emissions.
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As a summary, the Group’'s total air emissions can be
summarized as below:

mEmE

B o5

RSB R 48R RS PR B A a0

For the year ended

Emission B 30th June 2019
BE-Z-1#F

NRA=ZTBLEE

Unit (ton)

B {7 (W)

NO, =R a7 0.2244
SOy malm 0.0004
Particular Matter & F LT 0.0114

Table 2. Group Air Emission Performance

The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities to
ensure its air emission maintains at a satisfactory level. Further
information shall be disclosed should there be significant
changes to the reported emission levels.

Carbon Emission

The Group started examining its carbon emission generated
from its operation activities since its 2017 ESG report. In
this reporting period, the Group enhanced its data collection
system, and thus improved the quality of data collected.
In addition to power consumption from offices, electricity
consumed from the Group’s film production and vehicle fuel
consumption were also included in this year's carbon emission
calculation.

Similar to the methodology employed last year, the Group
estimated its carbon emission, as a Group, based on the
activities mentioned above and emission factors from
reputable third-party source on the public domain (ie:
electricity consumption data and the carbon intensity factor
are available on the electricity bills, sustainability reports from
electricity provider and public organizations, such as HKSAR
Environmental Protection Department).

As the result, the Group generated 477.5 tCO, in this reporting
period.
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The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
carbon emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency through working closely with employees and
external stakeholders. Further information and progress will
be disclosed in the subsequent ESG report.

Waste Management

The Group's core business involves only retails and financial
services. However, there were an insignificant amount of
chemicals used during the filming process (<100kg), of which
were disposed of safely and legally by licensed operators.
Overall, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
related laws or regulations in regards to such matters and will
continue its strict monitoring practices.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing
solid waste. The Group promoted the culture of recycling,
and had placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations
to increase employees’ awareness on recycling. Since last
reporting period, the Group had promoted the paper-less
working environment, and the initiative had been continued
in this reporting period.

The Group's office, retail and other business activities
generated daily waste from its operation. For this reporting
period, recorded waste production as follows:
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Waste Generation BEYRE Total Sum (tonne)

2 (W)
Hazardous Waste BEREEY <0.1
Non-Hazardous Waste BEREEY 380.4

Table 3. Group Waste Generation Amount

The Group shall continue its effort in the careful management
of generated waste, and further data will be disclosed in
subsequent ESG reports.
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Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and
had actively promoted the culture of "Efficient & Green”
operations since the last reported period. Continued from
last year, the Group had continued its efforts to encourage
employees to consume resources smartly, particularly on
paper and electricity.

Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation
practices were successfully implemented in the offices in
the past year. Latest environmental trends and green tips
were available to employees as constant reminders for
responsible use of natural resources. In addition, suitable
facilities management were in place to identify building
services that require upgrades for improved building efficiency
and employee comfort.

A summary of the Group’s consumption on natural resources
during this reporting period is provided as below:
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AEBRABREHMENRAERERMR
Zmh:

Total

Consumption ltem ¥ REH Unit B ot

Electricity Consumption A& kWh T R & 646,884

Water Consumption A 7K L NF 931,200

Diesel Consumption S m A A L NG 16,960

Petroleum Consumption A hFE A L N ax 5,450

LPG Consumption R AL A H R FE A L NI Nil £

Electricity Consumption Intensity F &8 E kWh/revenue  F B &I A 0.011
(HKS$) (%)

Water Consumption Intensity K& E L/revenue NFWA 0.015
(HKS) (BT

Table 4. 2018-2019 Resource Consumption Summary
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Resources Conservation

Resources consumption patterns of the Group had been
disclosed in last year's ESG Report, and the Group had strived
to make incremental improvements since.

The Group had continued its successful policies regarding
energy and paper consumption. These practices have been
detailed in last year's ESG report, highlighted as below:

° Air conditioners were set to 23-25°C;

° Idling electronic appliances were to be switched off or
set to energy saving mode;

° Documents were to be printed or copied double-sided;
and

° E-marketing material, such as greeting cards were to be
sent via electronic means only.

The Group took pride in promoting such practices to its partners
and suppliers, and would continue to carry out most of its
business communication digitally instead of printing hardcopy
documents to foster a paperless working environment.

SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the Film Business involves working
with a large number of individuals across various industries.
Employees include actors, productions workers, retail shop
sales and even line workers. The Group understands the best
way to attract or retain talents is by offering competitive
compensations, and treating employees fairly and equally in
regardless of culture, gender and interests, while complying
to laws and regulations. As one of its guiding principles, the
Group commits to growing its business sustainably and in
a socially responsible manner, whilst continuing its best
management practices to improve in areas as needed.
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Employment and Labour Standard

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (EOE). This
means that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees
without regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age,
sexual orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability
or other basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of
the Group accords to and exceeds the requirements of the
Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to
provide a fair compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and anti-discrimination scheme for all of our
employees.

During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible
for ensuring compliance with all regulations during the
employee recruitment process, where curriculum vitaes and
identification cards are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases
of the employment of child or forced labour, or junior members
under the age of 16 years old as full-time staff. In addition, the
Group protects the interests of its part-time employees, and
by restricting their working hours to under 4 hours per day.
Any breach of such action will be reported to the company's
senior management revision and subjected to further company
disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1st July 2018 to 30th June
2019, the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during operation.
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Remuneration Committee

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(a)  ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his
or her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;

(c)  reviewingand approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d)  recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of Executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The Group employee’'s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme
and the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.
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Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2019, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1.8 million, which had been recognized as
expenses and included in employee costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination

The Group's Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.

The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.

The following charts provided an overview of its employee’s
gender and age distribution with a total of 116 employees
recorded last per June 2019 during the reporting period:
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The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment
policies would be made transparent through electronic means
or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

During the period from 1st July 2018 to 30th June 2019,
there was no reported material breach of related regulations
and laws.

Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’s health and safety practices accords to the guideline
from HKSAR Labour Department (section “Occupational Safety
& Health"”), where safety equipment, measures, practices are
enforced per requirement. Sufficient lighting, air ventilation
and spacious working areas are provided in all premises to
minimise occupational health risks imposed to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these
drills is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted
during office hours.
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For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are
in a good condition.

During the reporting period from 1st July 2018 to 30th June
2019, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves producing products in the
entertainment, financial and retail industry. In order to stay
competitive, periodic trainings for employees are required
for the Group to stay abreast with the latest market
development. Great emphasis was placed on training and
equipping employees with the latest market trend for career
advancement.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce,
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The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.
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Total

Training Ratio Training Hours

38t =& #3E | B B

Male EE) 30.0% 204

Female pegli 48.7% 364
Table 5. Figures on employees trained by gender ~h RUERESOEIE IR

Total

Training Ratio Training Hours

3|t *& 4 3E | B B

Senior Management SREREE 100.0% 60

Management il 40.0% 189

Staff 8T 41.6% 319

Table 6. Figures on employee trained by category

Employees, Customers, Suppliers and
Other Stakeholders

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors. As reported
in last year's ESG report, the Group maintains an open
engagement channel with suppliers that includes procedures
to conduct regular meetings and interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates,
trademark use authorizations, product testing reports, and
customs duty certificates are inspected to ensure its validity.
Suppliers would be assessed based on product knowledge,
after-sales service, marketing strategies to ensure the Group's
standards can be met.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.
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The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Product Responsibility

The Group's business spreads across the retail and wholesale
of goods and production of movies. It is therefore anticipated
that the Group has a complicated product management
portfolio due to its subjection to various applicable laws and
regulations. Continued from last year's ESG report, details of
the Group’s product responsibility are summarised as below.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered
to regarding the sales of eyewear products:

° Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

o Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

° Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), where false trade descriptions, misleading
or incomplete information and mis-statements in respect
of goods provided in all sales activities) are strictly
prohibited in all of the Group's shops;

° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;

° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);
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° “Table of Tolerance"” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the
contact lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of
these lenses are valid before re-selling to customers;
and

o Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2018
to 30th June 2019, the Group has not received any complaints
regarding its eyewear products and services.

Retails Products — Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update
is performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of
law. On the other hand, regular communication is conducted
with suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and
measures accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will
also perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of
watches are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.

The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

There was no comment received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period (1st July 2018 to
30th June 2019).
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Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group's business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated.
Conflict of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible
occurrence of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client
transactions. Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering
training and circulars are provided to employees to remain
cautious on suspicious transactions.

The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are procedures in place for reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Group’s management, for
the corporate management, and a procedure of two signers
is required as a monitoring measure.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.

Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group's employees
are instructed to handle confidential information with due
care. Information is only collected and used in a responsible
and non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified
in the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting
the Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Copyright Ordinance (Chapter
528 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The Group will stay alert to the relevant legal issues
and update its internal policies when necessary to avoid any
breach of the regulatory requirements.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.

COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group’s
management team plays an important role in mobilising
employees to join all of these activities, which reflects
management team’s commitment to sustainable development.
The Group believes by encouraging employees to participate
in a wide range of charitable events, community awareness
will be raised, and more people will be inspired to take part in
serving our community. During the current reporting period,
the Group had provided actual support to various community
organizations, the details of which are set out below:

RE  HEgREREKRE

RAGEHNHELEZLEABEAENL
RHEHE-

g

AEBHOIRRBYL @B AR #E
HHERG AEENEEEKEHRS
ET2NMEZE R T EEESR(E
A RBREEBEFY A RHEERNAG -
AEBHEE ZBET2RAEZNES
AR EREHRER BEZAXE
R KEM2ERBHER - RARSH
B AEERZETERASERTEER
B FREHNWT

Contribution amount

Company name UNECTIE=R EER:uR

HK$

BT

The Society for the Relief of Disabled Children & &R E# e 1,500
Hong Kong Performing ERERABEESERAA

Artistes Guild Charity Limited 250,000

The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society Kowloon L fE 4 & & 10,000

Total P 261,500

The Group has donated a total of HK$261,500 in support of
the above programmes. The Group will continue to support
these meaningful social events in the future.
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ESEHREE

The board of directors (the "“Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2019
(the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
102 to 104.

SPECIAL DIVIDEND

A special dividend (the “Special Dividend”) of HK$0.3 per
share of the Company was paid on 22nd October 2018 (for
the year ended 30th June 2018: Nil) to the Shareholders on
the Company’s share register or branch share register on 11th
October 2018.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

A special interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share of the
Company was paid on 10th May 2019 (for the year ended
30th June 2018: Nil) to the Shareholders on the Company’s
share register or branch share register on 24th April 2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (for the year ended 30th June 2018: Nil).

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

EFTREXUCEBERABATARAF])
Ex(ExNe(EF8DLREART
FEMBAR(SABIAEENDEBEE_F
—NERNRAZTHLEFETXREFEDZ
BEMRECRAMBRE -

FTEXBRRBLEE 5 2
SEDMN

n
-

FAZEIBXEBRREER - HKH B
CEBHENEAMBERERMEN -

D» 4} ]]1]]*

AEEARFEREEIHBENDZRED
8 aR & M 15K M LD -

EERBAN DB

AEBAFEZEBEHZNFIEESF
4Bz 2mEKkaERA -

55 R 2

ARABIRZE—NFTAZ+ZHER
—E-NFT+AT—HRBIWNAQRAKRE
% 18 =k A% 38 o ff &9 A% BRR < 45 Bl BR B (T4
AEEDEBROIBL(EFHE-_T—NEX
B=Z+tRHIEFE : #E)o

IR B

AARRZE-—NFREATHRARZE
—NFHAZTHEBRINARARRE A
filt =k A% 5= o> i B9 IR BROR 4 Bl P HA R B
FRoIBET(BHREZE_ZE—N\NFAA= TL
HIEFE : &)

R H

EFTERRERIREEBE-FT AN
FRNA=ZTHLEFE:8)-

Hx BN



BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 30
of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$261,500 (2018: HK$238,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 359 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES/(DEFICIT)

Distributable reserves/(deficit) of the Company as at 30th June
2019 amounted to HK$174,349,000 (2018: HK$(152,025,000))
including contributed surplus, of HK$597,789,000 (2018:
HK$112,429,000), which is only distributable subject to
conditions as set out in Note 28(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
360 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities
during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually,
a “Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe
for shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of
its subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of
the Group.

Report of the Directors

(b)

EEEHREE

BTS2 E A

EZeURBRRB
BAEERERAREERER

Bl

AT E [ 38

BEELZHZz2EA(28A])

RE R A B R DA R B X

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{/\ o)

ARE-BEEMFMMERBHAE
MREEBZENE2BIES
BREREARR)ARA EL
MHEARRKKREER ZEM
WOTESE(BEHNBESIEER]D

ARE-BHEMMERFHAE
MREERZEMIERTES
(BRBUIFATES):

$’§IG&1—JEJZ§\"

GG
BEAERARBEHE

EF

AREESETRNEREETEBZTW
®2FE:

B F'aﬂ?‘jzﬁﬁﬂ& TIiTEZ
ERALHER:

AEBEITAKERAHIME
BERBZEMERRIAKEEE
KB RAREMBREERMN
BIOZEMNEZZEAFAA

RNE B8 QR EMEK
EEBITMNEBGENEBLH

BzEMEBR(EERIFERTE)
HBAMA Kk

AEEXBEFRUEHT L
TAAEBALEIEA

L EEERAT
—E-NEER

EFIRRT

11



18

Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

(c)

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

()  The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Shareholders has
been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of
the share options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes for the time being of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant to each grantee
must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares
for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of the
share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10- year period.
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(f) Payment on acceptance of the share options
offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on acceptance
of the share option offer.

(g) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share
option is made and shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided
that the subscription price should not be lower than the
nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Non-executive Director

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
(re-designated from executive Director to non-executive
Director on 1st February 2019 and resigned as
non-executive Director on 31st July 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Chi Keung
Mr. CHOI Wing Koon
Mr. TANG Yiu Wing
Mr. CHONG Ki Ming
(retired on 21st December 2018)
Mr. WONG Cheuk Wai, Jason
(retired on 21st December 2018)
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Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2)
of the Bye-laws and Mr. Choi Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu
Wing being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2019, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:
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Notes:

(@) The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (“Globalcrest”) which in turn
was interested in 33,546,853 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2019. Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the discretionary object
of the discretionary trust.

(b)  Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited (“Pioneer Entertainment”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, was
interested in 430,120,020 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2019.

All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests which they were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable)
of the Company and its associated corporations required to
be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

B 3

(a #Z & #E 2 X5 A BCentral Core
Resources Limited *+ H # 7% Globalcrest
Enterprises Limited ([ Globalcrest]) 2 & &B
2 % {7 A » i Globalcresti® — & — L 4F
N A=+ BRI A 733,546,853 % ik 17
FHEEZ M)BREERZEEET
CEEETHR-

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
([Pioneer Entertainment]) & — R HE B &
ZESHAMKLZER AR BM/NA
EE2EHE R-_ZT—NLE~NAZT+
H 7 78 X 7]1430,120,020 % &% 17 & % & #
)

FIBERARBBRD RBBERNDZEDY
BUERE-

BREXFHREEZEN R_FT—-NLFNXA
ZtH BEFHARATETHRAR
MERALAMEEBZENRN A
RO EEFTEEQREESF YR
GEHIEXVEETRFESD MAME KRR A

BRI ZEMERIRR(BERER
BEFLBEGIERBXHRSLE
A ZER)L DEARHER AR AR
EHFRBEGROIEXVIBEI2KERF Z
BRMAzEMERIRE L ORIE
BRETFRAMNGARF LB XM 2 EMR
BmaoRRE -

BREXFHBEESN RAFEREMAE
B ZREERARAETEZTRAB(ERE
BEZEBRISEUTZ FROLESESR -
FERTROTEETAAIRBARARE
BB EZEZRMND(KBREZHES 0
A 2 R 2 IS AR E 5 R
EROIAEL HE -

o AAF - HBERAD EHEA
A EBEAAREARMBAARA
4 [ 74 T 5 RO 3 4 AT T AE R B 4B
EFRAQAZEEARABR(RERS
TRERISEATZFR)TRAR AR
MRS B 2 I8 (5 AR BB (5 Sk 1 %
8 7 £ (4 28 SOK A o



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2019, Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
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BRI E-AENAZ+E BULER
B2EEYUARRAEETHRABN B
THRERARAGTRMHIABEBROTPHES
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HREAMARAEE AR HEREAQ

XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept ™ & 7 7 & #1 & & Il 55XV #8 5% 336 15 1R
by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFOare EEFZEB LMz ERIKXB AT
as follows:
Approximate
Number of percentage
shares and of the total
underlying issued share
shares of the capital of
Name Capacity Company held the Company
LER NN
i YN ERITRAE
R & HEE BEZ
= 55 K@ EAE BB DL
Pioneer Entertainment (Note a) Beneficial owner 430,120,020 47.44%
Pioneer Entertainment (fff 5% a) ExnER A
Notes: Bt 5 -
(a)  Pioneer Entertainment, a company incorporated in the British ~ (a)  Pioneer Entertainment/2 — X R &R & & X

Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2019, no other
person has any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company in the
register required to be kept by Company under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

HETMRKTZBERAR BAMHNAE
E2EHE-
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ESEHREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 17%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 26%
Sales

— the largest customer 7%
— five largest customers in aggregate 18%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with UPI, a company owned by Mr. Daneil
Lam, the executive Director of the Company, for renting (1)
an industrial unit on the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (with a saleable area of approximately 13,983
square foot) and (2) 5 carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a
28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking
podium plus a 2-level basement (“Rented Properties”) for
warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 25th
February 2018 to 24th February 2021, with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived
at following arm’s length negotiation between the Group and
UPI with reference to the rental valuation performed by Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent property
valuer, as at 22nd January 2018 which reflected the then
market rent.
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During the Year, UDE has paid a total of HK$2,928,000 in rent
to UPl in respect of the Rented Properties in accordance with
the terms of the Tenancy Agreement.

LISTING RULE IMPLICATIONS OF
THE CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Daneil Lam is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules). As such, the Tenancy
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on
an annual basis) constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the relevant
considerations and certain applicable percentage ratios for the
entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on an annual basis)
are less than HK$3,000,000 and are less than 5% respectively,
the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on an annual
basis) falls within the de minimis rule under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules and such transactions will be fully exempted
from any reporting, annual review, announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the Year, all
of which constituted exempted connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
during the Year. Details of these transactions are disclosed in
Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.
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ESEHREE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 256% of the Company's
issued shares as at 30th June 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2019

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe

To the shareholders of Universe Entertainment and
Culture Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 100 to 358, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th June 2019, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30th June 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable
Refer to Notes 3.1(b), 4(a)(vi) and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BYRBMKES

BA %2 2 % 5 18 (@)
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22 »

fre IR M EE3.1(b) -~ 4a)vi) &

Key audit matter

HEEXRER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN BERONNEARERSERET

B2

As at 30th June 2019, the gross amount of Group's loans
receivable amounted to HK$66,908,000, and the allowances
for impairment amounted to HK$5,278,000.
RZE-—NAERNA=Z=+H BESENERERLESR
66,908,000 7T + K 18 # & /5,278,000 % 7T °

The Group has applied HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
("HKFRS 9”) since 1st July 2018 and developed a new
impairment model for loans receivable.
EEBEPE-E-NFLtAHEBRANEAVERSE
HAEIR 2T AE(EEMBRELENEIRIL
BKRERFEIFREER -

The determination of allowances for impairment of loans
receivable using the expected credit loss model is subject
to a number of key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default and
adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. Management judgment is involved in
the selection of those parameters and the application of
the assumptions.

CREHCEEFRAEAETRRKERNBAERBIR
RETHRZ2EREBRR BEHINEERR THED
BME -ZBOBBEX BORBUARAMEHEERAZERE
AEREZ EREEHHIRGEZSF2HLERRE -

Our

audit procedures to assess the

allowances for impairment of loans
receivable included the following:
RAHERE RN R ERE  BMHT
TUATENERF:

understanding and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of
loans receivable, the credit grading
process and the measurement of
allowances for impairment of loans
receivable;
THREGEENN D REERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued)

BA %2 2 % 5 18 (@)
BEREZGZHEAIEEEE (&)

Key audit matter
HRERSBE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BMHNERNTHBERERESEET
B

In particular, the determination of the allowances for
impairment of loans receivable is heavily dependent on
the external macro environment and the Group’s internal
credit risk management strategy. The expected credit losses
for loans receivable are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical overdue
data, the historical loss experience for loans to customers
and other adjustment factors.

LHRE - EERWE R R E 5 G R RS KBRS
ZERER BEEENANBERAEREERE BHE
FONEHEEEEREREEELFTRATRFREHDN

Eﬂmuﬁﬁ%%ﬁ nE%ﬁlﬂ&EM HERAZE

& &)l 5t o

° assessing the reliability of the
expected credit loss model used by
management in determining loss
allowances, including assessing
the appropriateness of the key
parameters and assumptions in
the expected credit loss model,
including the identification of loss
stages, probability of default, loss
given default, exposure at default,
adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management
adjustments;

e NRETHEEBRERITGEERE®R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued)

BYRBMKES

B %2 2 % 5 18 (@)
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Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN BERONNEARERSERET

B2

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount
of collateral, the seniority of the claim and the existence
of other creditors. The enforceability, timing and means
of realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount
of allowances for impairment as at the end of the reporting
period.

EREN EETHRERGR BBENEZESZERA
- GLULERZREANHA 2 WHER - ERADNI BN
NoERPOATNEE ZEXERFEAEREFEA
hEREA B ERYOATHITHE KRERERGT A
NeTERERYHATUESE KMXEREFHARD
WMEREBERE-

We identified the allowances for impairment of loans
receivable as a key audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgment involved and because
of its significance to the financial results of the Group.
HRAPRNBEETHELEREREEAE  RKEHE
Y EXENMBEXEAEEERE RMBEKER
MHERERERBREZEER-

assessing the completeness and
accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the expected credit loss
model. For key parameters derived
from internal data relating to original
loan agreements, we compared the
total balance of the loans receivable
used by management to assess the
allowances for impairment with the
general ledger, selecting samples and
comparing individual loans receivable
information with the underlying
agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy
of compilation of the loans receivable.
For key parameters derived from
external data, we assessed the
accuracy of such data by comparing
them with public resources;

AR EREEEERER P AR
2HMABBENTEE R EEMT-
HEREERBGZEHEDN AN I E
BREOER28mME  KMEE
BEEANTHAEREGENRKE
HEEREREESHRETHER
ERERABEBRERERNEH
EEARRE R S A AR
RN E RS EREY -5t 8 I E
BESINAR2EMmE  BHMA
BEEERALERLR  FEZ
BB ) SE ML

EFRAT(EMERAT
—E-NEER

9



92

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued)

BA %2 2 % 5 18 (@)
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Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BMHNERNTHBERERESEET
B

° for key parameters involving
judgement, critically assessing input
parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing
to the Group’s internal records
including historical loss experience
and type of collateral. As part of
these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions to estimates
and input parameters compared
with prior period and on transition
to the new accounting standard
and considered the consistency
of judgement. We compared the
economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess
whether they were aligned with
market and economic development;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FEAEEZEE®

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued) MEWE M2 HAFEE#E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter
Key audit matter EMNERNMNEBRERSEEET
BREREHE B

o in respect of identifying exposures

with a significant increase in
credit risk, evaluating the validity
of management’'s assessment on
whether the credit risk of the loan
has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether
the loan is credit-impaired by
selecting samples for which we
checked loan overdue information,
made enquiries of the Management
about the borrowers’ business
operations, checked borrowers’
financial information and researched
market information about borrowers’
businesses;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued)

BA %2 2 % 5 18 (@)
JE B R S B A ()

Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
BMHNERNTHBERERESEET
B

o for selected samples of loans
receivables that are credit-
impaired, evaluating management’s
assessment of the value of any
property collateral held by comparison
with market prices based on the
location and use of the property and
the prices of neighbouring properties.
We also evaluated the timing and
means of realisation of collateral,
evaluated the forecast cash flows,
challenged the viability of the Group's
recovery plans and evaluated other
credit enhancements that are integral
to the contract terms;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FEAEEZEE®

Expected and credit loss of loans receivable (Continued) MEWE M2 HAFEE#E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter
Key audit matter EMNERNMNEBRERSEEET
EREREE B

° assessing and testing the sensitivity
of the credit loss provisions to
changes in modelling assumptions;
and

e HELKARGEEFEEBHERN

SEREPNHERE &

° evaluating whether the disclosures
on allowances for impairment of
loans receivable meet the disclosure
requirements in prevailing accounting
standards.
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3INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Dune, Charles.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27th September 2019

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HmEEERRRK

As at 30th June 2019 R-ZFE—NFEANA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2019 2018
IS I
—E—-hF —E-N\F
~NHA=+H ~NBZ=Z+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 TET FAETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kFRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HENREE 6 4,649 5,705
Investment properties wEME 7 31,460 29,360
Other intangible assets HEMEREE 8 2,387 2,535
Film rights and films in progress B R EER
2B 10 235,304 80,603
Interests in associates REEE QAR 2= 12(a) 1,085 2,875
Loans receivable B U B 3 22(a) - 1,447
Loan to an associate ¥ — BB &N a)
2B & 22(b) 4,288 4,340
Film related deposits BB 74,426 35,693
Deposits paid BfET & 15 1,596 1,396
Deferred tax assets FIERIEE E 16 341 274
Other financial assets HthemEE 17 9,574 65,882
365,110 230,110
Current assets REBEE
Inventories B 20 9,217 8,028
Accounts receivable JE 452 BR 3K 21 11,161 30,935
Loans receivable E U E = 22(a) 61,630 56,598
Loan to an associate bl 115 RN
Z B 22(b) - 2,500
Amount due from an associate JE U — B & R B FRIE 12(b) - 89
Deposits paid, prepayments and Bl & B RIE
other receivables K H b fE W 218 16 87,501 170,589
Trading securities R 5 & FH 18 8,691 49,356
Contingent consideration WS ARE
receivable 23 - 3,796
Tax recoverable Al U 6] % 18 2,242 =
Tax certificate 5 45 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRKE S
— trust accounts -fEsER P 24 869 7,157
Cash and cash equivalents RehBesFEYD 25 178,228 522,285
Totalcurrentassets | .......... RBEERE 359,584 ... 851,333,
Total assets wEE 724,694 1,081,443
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to the owners XA &) A A JE (h #
of the Company
Share capital A& A 26 9,066 9,066
Share premium R& 17 3% B 28(a) 35,013 928,358
Other reserves == 28(a) 546,467 67,565
Accumulated losses 2t EiE 28(a) (209,315) (88,094)
381,231 916,895
Non-controlling interests IE 15 A% 2 (297) 78
Total equity R 380,934 916,973

.....................................................................................................

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERERRK

As at 30th June 2019 R-ZF—NFEANA=+AH

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2019 2018
i N
—E-NEF —E—-N\F
AA=+AH ANA=+8H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T TExT FA T
LIABILITIES &&
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Obligations under a finance lease gt & f & & £ 29 - 7
Deferred tax liabilities BREHRERE 16 90 440
90 447
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable & BR X 30 10,821 8,518
Amount due to an associate JER — M E R RRIE 12(b) 2,725 =
Other payables and accrued H fth fE A RIB & BB qu
charges et 31 74,610 112,388
Contingent consideration payable & i st A KX (B 32 20,400 20,400
Contract liabilities aEHaE 33 193,454 =
Deposits received B2UWET & 34,923 14,528
Obligations under a finance lease Bt & T & & 1 29 7 18
Taxation payable JE ok 7t 18 6,730 8,171
Total current liabilities RBEEAHE 343,670 164,023
Total liabilities weE 343,760 164,470
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 724,694 1,081,443
Net current assets REBEEEE 15,914 687,310
Total assets less current MEERABASB
liabilities 381,024 917,420
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1st M : AEBER T - NF LA - B FE

REBMBREERFE 16 R BFER
BHREEAFOR -REMEEZBE
HE BEARZEGHRREYHETS
Lo 8A K

July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated for the change in these accounting
policies.

HNEI109E &F %35852M117%¢t“ﬁ*
EHMBHRERZ —HD

The notes on pages 109 to 358 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

HNFEI00EEFEIE v A MBEHRE
R-ZZE—hAhFhLhA-t+tBAKESS It

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 358
were approved by the Board on 27th September 2019 and

were signed on its behalf: EERBRENTREESE

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun N R R F

Director Director EF EF
BFREVCEEERAA

“e-naeg | 0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 BZE_FE—AFNA=1HILFE

2019 2018
“E-hF —E-)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
L3 TEL TERL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: REREXK:
Revenue g
Sales of goods - video distribution, optical HEEm-BBET.
products and watches products REEMRERE® 38,090 32,857
Income on film distribution and exhibition, BEEOREY RERER
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BERERA 5,343 36,377
Income from other businesses HiEB KA 18,236 17,439
Total revenue Fellgy 5 61,669 86,673
Cost of revenue I 88 Bk AR
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA (27,254) (21,703)
Related cost on film distribution and exhibition, BYEOREYM RERER
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights Y MERBRA (10,185) (15,913)
Cost from other businesses Hin ¥ BHA (8,850) (3,234)
Total cost of revenue W gk B A A (46,289) (40,850)
Selling expenses HEBEHR (12,572) (12,747)
Administrative expenses THER (73,989) (111,727)
Other operating expenses E@EsmA = (45)
Gain on disposal of film library HEEYBEZ WS 10 - 182,050
Impairment loss of interest in an associate R—HEBERARCERANE
E# 12(a) (1,065) (16,045)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AHHESREERE
financial assets E# 17 - (23,849)
Impairment loss of film related deposits EYRBI2RERS (67) (6,949)
Impairment loss of film rights EXRENEER 10 (165) (4,903)
Impairment loss of accounts receivable AR FREEE 35 - (4,098)
Change in expected credit loss BEHEEREE 35 (26,823) S
Amortisation of other intangible assets HMEBEVEESER 8 (148) (148)
Other income HEA 39 9,810 2,772
Other losses - net EEBE-FE 40 (4,207) (8,999)
Gains/(losses): Wi/ (B8 :
Fair value change of trading securities REEHFATEED (5,288) (108,598)
Fair value change of other financial assets BREERATEARL
carried at fair value through profit or loss HthemBEEATEE (19,437) -
Fair value change of contingent consideration BEUAARELATEES
receivable 23 (3,796) (11,941)
Fair value change of contingent consideration ERZARBZATEEY
payable 32 - (832)
Fair value change on investment properties REMEZATEEY 7 2,100 3,800
Finance income BHBEBA 4 2,392 104
Finance costs B 75 B AR 34(c) - (3,078)
Share of losses of associates EEBERARER (725) (473)
Share of losses of a joint venture EE—HagrRER 13(a) - (31)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-MHBLA WA 47 - 249
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary AE-EHBARICER - (35)
Loss before tax BREAE & 34 (118,600) (79,700)
Income tax credit FEHiE & 42 123 3,586
Loss for the year from continuing operations FRNREFELEEBNER (118,477) (76,114)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 HZE_-—FE—AFENA=+HIFFE

2019 2018
“E-hF —E-)N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
3% TEL TERL
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRLEBEEE:
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REDRITEEEBER
FRNER 43 (3,098) (59,260)
Loss for the year ENER (121,575) (135,374)
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EKE:
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: e ENsBEEREZER:
Net movement in available-for-sale investment HEHNESHEERRML
reserve in respect of available-for-sale THNEREREZED
financial assets: FE
Net changes in fair value of available-for-sale It EeREEC LT
financial assets 2EEE = (39,827)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts ERCBEREERNEN
transferred to profit or loss: NERE:
Impairment loss HEER = 23,849
Realised loss upon disposal HETHRLESREER
of available-for-sale financial assets MEERER = 18,986
- 42,835
Release of translation reserve upon REENBRARBRDRE
disposal of subsidiary & = 34
Currency translation differences ERBEEE m 182
Other comprehensive income for the year, FrREM2ERE NRHEE
net of tax 17 3,224
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERE2EERAE (121,404) (132,150)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company: ARAEEAEGERE:
- from continuing operations -RERELEER (118,102) (76,024)
— from discontinued operation -REERIBESH (3,098) (59,260)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARABEAEEERNER
the Company (121,200) (135,284)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests:  3E 1% i & FE {5 55 18
- from continuing operations -RERBRERE (375) (90)
- from discontinued operation -REEREEEER = =
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling FERERELREANER
interests (375) (90)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTEHER2EEREAE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ALRREEA (121,029) (132,060)
Non-controlling interests FERER (375) (90)
(121,404) (132,150)

EFREEBERAE | 103
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 BZE_FE—AFNA=1HILFE

2019 2018
“E-h% “E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
3% TER TET
Total comprehensive loss attributable to AARBRBEAREZZEER
owners of the Company arises from: aERy:
Continuing operations SERGER (117,931) (72,800)
Discontinued operation ERIEEERH (3,098) (59,260)
(121,029) (132,060)
Loss per share attributable to owners of ERFDAEEAELER
the Company for the year (expressed in HK$):  EE (LB T FIR) :
From continuing and discontinued operations HREBARCKLBLEEH
- basic -EXK 44(a) (0.134) (0.152)
- diluted -E% 44(h) (0.134) (0.152)
From continuing operations REFEREER
- basic -ER 44(a) (0.131) (0.086)
- diluted -3 44(b) (0.131) (0.086)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1st
July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated for the change in these accounting
policies.

The notes on pages 109 to 358 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 HZE_-—FE—AFENA=+HIFFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EAAREARE
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other  (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves losses) Total interests equity
(Note 28al)
REEA/
kx  ROERE EtEE  (RHER) @i FRRER £y £
(B & 281a))
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TERL TEn TER ThI THEL ThL ThL
Balance at 1st July 2017 R-BE-tELtA-B2E&H 8,533 893,345 67,867 43614 1,013,359 168 1,013,527
Comprehensive Loss 2EER
Loss for the Year FRER - - - (135,284)  (135,284) (90)  (135,374)
Other comprehensive loss At2EFE
Net changes in fair value of IRHESHEEZATHE
available-for sale financial assets EHFE 17 - - (39,827) S (39,827) - (39,827)
Reclassification adjustments for ERTRECEMEN
amounts transferred to profit PERE:
or loss:
Impairment loss HEER - - 23,849 - 23,849 - 23,849
Realised loss upon disposal of HETHRHESREERR
available-for-sale financial EERER
assets - - 18,986 - 18,986 - 18,986
Currency translation difference EBBEZE - - 182 - 182 - 182
Release of translation reserve REENBAAKEEAE
upon disposal of subsidiary EL - - 34 - 34 - 34
Total other comprehensive loss ~ Ht2EEBLE - 5 3204 5 3204 S 3204
Total comprehensive loss ER2EFREE
for the Year - - 3,224 (135,284)  (132,060) (90)  (132,150)
Transactions with owners AEEAZRGE
Share option scheme BiRETE
— Grant of share options -RUBRE - - 10,481 - 10,481 - 10,481
- Lapse of share options -BREXK - - 3,576) 3576 = 5 =
Shares issued under share option R EERIEF HETHRA
scheme 27 533 35,013 (10,481) - 25,065 - 25,065
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHERR - - 50 - 50 5 50
Total contributions by and AAARBATERBADT
distribution to owners of BREADRZBE EER
the company, recognised ERAER
directly in equity 533 35,013 (3,526) 3,576 35,596 - 35,596
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 BZE_FE—AFNA=1HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARAEEARS
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other  (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves losses) Total interests equity
(Note 28(al)
REEA/

Bx  RHEE

Note HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi TEn  TEX

EftdE  (RHER) A% FEREZ  ARR
(%3 28(a)

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TEn  TErL  TEn  TEx

Balance at 30th June 2018 and RZE-NEXAZTAEK

1st July 2018 “E-NEtR-H2EH 9,066 928,358 67,565 (88,094) 916,895 8 916,973
Impact on initial application of EREREAUBREENEN
HKFRS 9 nye - - 6o Q) (6650 - (Bs0)
9,066 928,358 60,936 (88,115) 910,245 8 910,323
Comprehensive Loss 2EEE
Loss for the Year ENEHR - - - (1212000 (121,200} (375)  (121,575)
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EFE
Currency translation difference EHBEEE = = 17 = 171 = 171
Total comprehensive loss ER2ERELE
for the Year - - m (121,2000  (121,029) (375)  (121,404)
Transactions with owners REEAZRAE
Dividend paid ERRE 45 - = (407,985) = (407,985) = (407,985)
Reduction of share premium HIA R B - (893345) 893345 5 5 S =
Total contributions by and AAARBATERBADT
distribution to owners of READRZBE EER
the company, recognised ERAER
directly in equity - (893,345) 485,360 - (407,985) - (407,985)
Balance at 30th June 2019 RZE-AEXRE=TH
k8 9,066 35,013 546,467 (209,315) 381,231 (297) 380,934

Note: The Grouphasinitiallyapplied HKFRS 15andHKFRS 9at 1stJuly2018. it : REEB R T - \F Lt A - BT E

Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information
is not restated for the change in these accounting policies.

The notes on pages 109 to 358 are an integral part of these &7
AN
=}

consolidated financial statements. =
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HWERER

—E-AFANA=THIEFE

For the year ended 30th June 2019 #Z

me

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAT
Cash flows from operating EEITH2RERE
activities
Net cash generated from EEITBHEEAEZFES
operating activities 46 223,247 225,629
Cash flows from investing RETH2HERE
activities
Purchase of property, EAYE - e
plant and equipment B 6 (3,821) (5,769)
Decrease in film related deposits ?'-E_E FHBEFI 2R 553 3,375
Increase in film related deposits BB 2EmM (40,471) (7,972)
Payments for film rights and BERREREERZ
films in progress ER-ZN N 10 (155,495) (44,879)
Proceeds from disposal of EERHEHE SR
available-for-sale financial BEZHBRE
asset - 49,984
Proceeds from capital return At ESRMEEZ
from available-for-sale & 7N @ #I?z Fr 1§ ®C 18
financial assets 38,507 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEwE - Hes
property, plant and equipment RE2HB 3’\ 46(a) 34 1,053
Proceeds from disposal of HE E M| A F Z
other intangible assets BT 18 218 - 16,290
Receipt of the remaining & §$T4|3 Sk
portion of the proceeds from BB ESE
disposal of film library 10 - 76,927
Loan receivable granted to Y —FFE =
a third party :ZFEHQT%IA (1,000) (947)
Net cash inflow on disposal LEHBARZR S
of subsidiaries mAFE R 47 = 294
Interest received 2 W F B 2,392 228
Net cash (used in)/generated REFH (A EE
from investing activities ZERE (159,301) 88,684
BFIRELEEERAF

—E-NEER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2019 BZE_FE—AFNA=1HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAT
Cash flows from financing BMETH2HRERE
activities
Proceeds from shares issued RIT I BERR RE AT 35 1T
upon exercise of share options %15~ Fr8 218 - 25,065
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 46(b) - (53,063)
Capital element of finance leases FMEMHENHZ
payments B ARE D 46(a) (18) (28)
Loan from a director —EZEERTEX 47 = 10,571
Interest paid B F B 46(b) - (2,694)
Dividend paid 2 1 i & 45 (407,985) S
Net cash used in financing BETEBMAZFES
B RN B (408,003) .| (20,149)
Net (decrease)/increaseincash BHERELZEY
and cash equivalents ZFOR D) /1 m (344,057) 294,064
Currency translation differences ERBREERE = (1
Cash and cash equivalents REVHRERAS
at beginning of the year £BY 522,285 228,222
Cash and cash equivalents RERBRERES
at end of the year ZEY 178,228 522,285
Analysis of cash and RERBEEEBYD
cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents HeRELEEY 25 178,228 522,285

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1st  Mift: AEBER - ZE-NF LA - B O T E

July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative REEMBREENE R REEM

information is not restated for the change in these accounting BREEREIR - BEBEMEEZBE

policies. FE BEARZEETRELEHET
LB & o

The notes on pages 109 to 358 are an integral part of these #5109 E = F 368 A Z Mt &t & It F 45
consolidated financial statements. e Bmik s — &5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company
Limited (formerly known as Universe International
Financial Holdings Limited) (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
money lending, leasing of investment properties,
entertainment business, securities investment, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products and watches
products, and provisions of type-setting, translation,
printing, design, distribution of financial print products
and other related services (“financial printing services”).
The Group ceased the business of China Jianxin Financial
Services Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, which was principally engaged in the
business of securities brokerage and margin financing
("Securities Brokerage Business”) with effect from 30th
June 2018.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 27th September 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (“INTs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of contingent
consideration receivable, other investments in
equity securities, derivative financial instruments,
contingent consideration payable and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

Disposal group held for sale are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

- HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

- HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to classification of financial assets and
measurement of credit losses, and impacted
by HKFRS 15 in relation to presentation of
contract assets and contract liabilities.

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. It sets
out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively to item that existed at
1st July 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment
to opening equity at 1st July 2018.
Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS
39.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the
impact of transition of HKFRS 9 on
retained earnings and available-for-
sale investment reserve attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company at
1st July 2018.

2 BEESTHEREZE®

2.1 #% BHE KE ()
EHBESHRIEEE

(i) K& AT B A S AT & B

B 7 #8 & 2E R (80

(a) BEEMBFEHREER
EZIF @ T A
(&)
TRE M EFE Y B R

FEAFIR ZBE
AR QA SRR
—“ZE-NFLtA—H
FE1H (R BB & ) Jo Al it
hERERBZF

& o

=

HK'000
F& T

Accumulated losses ZIEB
Transferred from Available-for-sale  #E# g HIFIFFE BB

investment reserve (recycling) EAFE(EBER

relating to financial assets now EATEDFECZS

measured at fair value through MEEBRBZAHEED

profit or loss (“FVTPL") ERERBIREED) 6,629
Recognition of additional expected — W RIZE LK R E 2

credit losses on financial assets TR EE 2 EINE

measured at amortised cost FEEA (6,650)
Net increase in accumulated losses WZZ— \F+ A —H

at 1st July 2018 Z REHEEFEM (21)
Available-for-sale investment AHHEREHRE

reserve (recycling) (7] # =)
Transferred to accumulated losses — #E& F R IF 5 FE @B R

relating to financial assets now EAFEFEZS /M

measured at FVTPL BEFHBMRAER (6,629)
Net decrease in Available-for-sale RZZE—NF+H/—H

investment reserve (recycling) at ZAHEEKXREREE

1st July 2018 (AT £ @) % " 2 (6,629)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting
policies resulting from its adoption of
HKFRS 9 are set out below.

Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial
assets into three principal
classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"”) and FVTPL.
These supersede HKAS 39's
categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets measured at
FVTPL. Classification of a financial
asset under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which
the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flows
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ZETTBRERE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 Hm B E )
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures SRR EE R E @
(Continued)
(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) JEFH & S A&155T & &
(Continued) B % 3R & 2E Al (1)
(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (a) &EBHEREER
FIR [z H T A
(%)
i) Classification of financial assets ) TRHEERE
and financial liabilities (Continued) e Em S HE
(&)
Non-equity investments held by REBBEAED
the Group are classified into one R AKE B
of the following measurement ARTES —
categories: Bz 285 -
- amortised cost, if the - R EK
investment is held for the PN S
collection of contractual BEEREDN
cash flows which represent B &R
solely payments of principal A 48
and interest. Interest income ® R 2
from the investment is BN 4 % A
calculated using the effective EE X2
interest method; SN ]
e & A&
T8 B
I QUNDLR
B E B F
KIRFTHE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

i) Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

FVTOCI - recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely
payments of principal and
interest and the investment is
held within a business model
whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other
comprehensive income,
except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the
effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains
and losses. When the
investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income
is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ZETHEERRBE®@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 fm B E )
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures SRR EE R E @
(Continued)
(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) JEFH & S A&155T & &
(Continued) B % 3R & 2E Al (1)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (a) & BB IREER

FIR [z H T A

(#&)
i) Classification of financial assets ) 2@ EERZ
and financial liabilities (Continued) @A EmSHE
(#®)

- FVTPL, if the investment - FEBBER
does not meet the criteria for ¥ E
being measured at amortised ABR - W%
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). TR A
Changes in the fair value of B8 K
the investment (including PN v )
interest) are recognised in Em2AE
profit or loss. = A
FE(H &

B):i £
' . i
E(BE A
BIM AT
B2 5 RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

i)

Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

An investment in equity securities
is classified as FVTPL unless the
equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the
issuer's perspective. Where
such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVTOCI (non-
recycling), are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

i) Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group decides not to elect
this designation option (irrevocably
designate as FVTOCI) for any of
the investments held on 1st July
2018 and will recognise any fair
value changes in respect of these
investments in profit or loss as
they arise.

The following table shows the
original measurement categories
for each class of the Group's
financial assets under HKAS
39 and reconciles the carrying
amounts of those financial assets
determined in accordance with
HKAS 39 to those determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 S BRRBE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
. . I -
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 fm B E )
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures S BREREH R E @
(Continued)
(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) JEFH & S A&155T & &
(Continued) B % 3R & 2 Al (1)
(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (a) &ERHEIEER
E9S [ T A
(&)
i) Classification of financial assets ) EEHEERS
and financial liabilities (Continued) @EEm S HE
(#&)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
30th June 1st July
2018  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement 2018
REEEEH REEEHE
ER%E30% REEBFR
RZE-NE RZB-N§
RAZTA tA-H
ZEEE ENiSE ENfiE ZEER
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
Financial assets carried REHRAARZ
at amortised cost SREE
Accounts receivable JE Y B 5t 30,935 - (788) 30,147
Loans receivable ERER 58,045 - (3,763) 54,282
Loans to an associate RY-BHEQAZER 6,840 - (101) 6,739
Amount due from an associate B -FEEAR Y HE 89 - - 89
Deposits paid, prepayments and BRITS BARER
other receivables Hh WA 164,937 - (1,998) 162,939
Bank balances and cash REBRRRS
- trust accounts -ERER 7,157 - - 7,157
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEN 522,285 - - 522,285
790,288 - (6,650) 783,638
Financial assets carried EREREATEARYZ
at FVPL SHEE
Trading securities R5ES 49,356 - - 49,356
Contingent consideration receivable ERAARE 3,796 - - 3,796
Unlisted investment funds (Note (i) EETREER (N = 1,049 = 1,049
Unlisted limited partnership FETERABLE
(Note (i) (GEL) = 64,833 - 64,833
53,152 65,962 - 119,034
Financial assets classified as available- 1155 B &5 %8 £39%
for-sale under HKAS 39 PERTHLE
(Notes (i)) SHEEMEG) 65,882 (65,882) - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

21 R BLE E )
S REEYH R IFE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

K& R 3 5] B AE 5 5T & B

(Continued) B 7 3R & 2 Rl (&)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (a) & &R EER
F9g 2 T A
(#)

Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Note:

(i) Under HKAS 39, investments in
unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership not

) EBEERZ
BAEENSHE
(%)
B 5
H RBREEEE

& Z4E A 39
5% I I+

held for trading purpose were EEER®
classified as available-for-sale ZRIEE™
financial assets. These equity KEE2 R
investments are classified as at JEEMBER
FVTPL under HKFRS 9. ERLEZ

The measurement categories for
all financial liabilities remain the
same. The carrying amounts for
all financial liabilities (including
financial guarantee contracts)
at 1st July 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application
of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

i) Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset
or financial liability at FVTPL at 1st
July 2018.

i) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred
loss’ model in HKAS 39 with an
‘expected credit loss’ (“ECL")
model. The ECL model requires
an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with financial
assets and therefore recognises
ECL earlier than under the
“incurred loss"” accounting model
in HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

if) Credit losses (Continued)

The Group applies the new ECL
model to the following items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents,
loans receivables, trade and
other receivables and loans
to associates);

- contract assets as defined in
HKFRS 15 (see Note 2.18);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued,
which are not measured at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

i)

Credit losses (Continued)

For further details on the Group's
accounting policy for accounting
for credit losses, see note 2.12.
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The following table reconciles the TERZE —
closing loss allowance determined NERNA=Z+
in accordance with HKAS 39 as at BiREFES
30th June 2018 with the opening 5% Rl 3957
loss allowance determined in EE M R OA
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at EREHFER_F
1st July 2018. —NF+ A —
BiRES B
HmHEERE9
5 & E A HR A7)
BERERENY
Additional
credit loss
30th June recognised 1st July
2018 at 1st July 2018
(HKAS 39) 2018 (HKFRS 9)
R ZB-N\£
—E-N\%§ —E-N\%§ tA-H
AB=TH tA-H (BAHE
(BBgsd RBAZEHN REER
% B 5 39%) FEER F9%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER
Accounts receivables & W BR 3K 5,515 788 6,303
Loans receivable EWEXR - 3,763 3,763
Loans to an RY-HHELE
associate ZEX - 101 101
Deposits paid, prepayment 234 - B B
and other receivables T H & W 2R = 1,998 1,998
5515 6,650 12,165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

iii)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies
resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as
described below:

- Information relating to
comparative periods has not
been restated. Differences
in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting
from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are recognised
in accumulated losses and
reserves as at 1st July 2018.
Accordingly, the information
presented for the year ended
30th June 2018 continues
to be reported under HKAS
39 and thus may not be
comparable with the current
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments
have been made on the
basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed
at 1st July 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9
by the Group):

- the determination of
the business model
within which a financial
asset is held; and

- the designation of
certain investments in
equity instruments not
held for trading to be
classified as at FVTOCI
(non-recycling).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

iif)  Transition (Continued)

- If, at the date of initial
application, the assessment
of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition
would have involved undue
cost or effort, a lifetime ECL
has been recognised for that
financial instrument.

(b)  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue
and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue
arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The Group performed an assessment
of the new standard and concluded
that the current treatment of revenue
from contracts with customers is
consistent with the new principles.
Except for the change in presentation
of contract assets and liabilities, the
adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact on the financial position
and there is no transitional impact to
accumulated losses. Under HKFRS 15,
a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before receiving the
consideration or being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the
contract, then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as a contract
asset. The contract asset is transferred
to receivables when the right to
consideration becomes unconditional.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group
recognise the related revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i)  Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)  HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

As a result of this change in
accounting policy, as at 1st July 2018,
deposits received from customers of
approximately HK$5,988,000 were
reclassified to contract liabilities.

(c)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

This interpretation provides guidance
on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date
of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related
item, the date of the transaction for
each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of
HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the
financial result of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

2 EETHERE®@

2.1 #% B HE ZE ()
EHBESHRIEEE)

(Continued)
(ii)
standards not yet adopted

New Standards and amendments to

(i)

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st
July 2018 and have not been early adopted:
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
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Definition of Material
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Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
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Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures
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Definition of a Business
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Prepayment Features with Negative
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

2

2.1

REMBHRME
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periods beginning
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FEHEMER

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainly over Income Tax Tst January 2019
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2EERR

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 1st January 2019
FEMEEE —E-REE_T-LFRAMERE —ET-N¥-A—8

B§:

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of
HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. While the assessment has
been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impact upon the initial adoption of
this standard may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standard
is initially applied in the Group’s annual
financial report for the year ending 30th
June 2020. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standard is initially
applied in that financial report.

AEBEEFEVBER
HEZESETMHAENN
EHYE-ZHA AL
AEBEHNESH B R
EEAEIHRME T A
AAREHEETERERE
REAFEZ - EHEBHE
ZE2ME—THFBR TR
M-BEHEEMB RS
B 165 T A B L
[ A = I/NE N
EARNELENEREER
REERMTR - RAABZES
EERMTHEIBREASE
EERATESEREL M
RAEEHZE-_Z-_FF
NAZTRALEEENEE
MEREEAEAZSE
Bl BT 7] B8 & & 5 D H &2
ZoXREBEITTAREEE XN
HeidBREEE(RER
BRXER) EE L
MEREEAEAZSE
B A& 1F o

EFRAT(EMERAT
—E-NEER

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Lease

As disclosed in note 2.10, currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and
operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as
the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact
significantly on the way that lessors account
for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees
will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value
of the minimum future lease payments and
will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Lease (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's
accounting as a lessee of leases for
properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July 2019. As
allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to
use the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition
of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to
elect the practical expedient for not applying
the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Lease (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of
HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1st July
2019 and will not restate the comparative
information. As disclosed in note 49(a), at
30th June 2019 the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to approximately
HK$22,058,000 for properties, which is
payable within 5 years after the reporting
date. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS
16, the opening balances of lease liabilities
and the corresponding right-of-use assets
will be both adjusted to approximately
HK$20,622,000, after taking account the
effects of discounting, as at 1st July 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, the Group expects
that the transition adjustments to be made
upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. However, the expected changes
in accounting policies as described above
could have a material impact on the Group's
financial statement from the year end 30th
June 2020 onwards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’'s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 2.12(b)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Incomes Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’'s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 23 X% S e

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by- transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (that is, the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have a joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Asset
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in
a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any

liabilities incurred jointly;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group's interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Chairman of the Company
(the chief operating decision maker) for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

2

2.6

REMBHRME

SRR E

e HRBHEGEXBES
2 R

e EHRX BEHEEMGEM
HRAAEZRS -

AEBNEEXEBH 2R
FPHEE AE WHEERAX
DTREEARZEEEE &
B REEAXNEBENBR
HFEA AR -

5 85 4 5
REDHRMBEHRERMEBH
EN0WEESRE NHOEE
ﬁ?ﬁilxﬁ?ﬁ&iﬁzuu“*
RFHEERE THEAQA
ITRER(TELZERKREBIRHEL
MBEHERE -

R BE2mMmME KRIEDHLA
HREUKEBERFEERNEm &R
HBMHE - ESEAERMHE TP
HALEMN BESEEmK
RERBOO AT EREERRD
MEITHEL TASZEERE
EDHMIRETEHTE - @
FEERMLESH WFE

ERABSEE NATRTA
TR
BEFREVEEBRRDA

—E-NEER

143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019

2

E

(a)

(b)

S BRXREEwE

I 5
DEEMIRER
AEEFZEERNYBR
RANBEBEHUAZERE
BRAENIELHERIRN
ER(HeEEBDAE-
FEMBRERABIT(E
TNDE2®H BLTHARF
MIERANEENIIERE
W o

R 5 K& &
SN ZRABRZ AR
HEA(HEREHTE)
E’\JETT@ RMEEEE -
REUERHELEWNER
Mﬁzﬁﬁfuréﬂauxzﬂﬁu%ﬁ%
AAEMNEREEMAR
FREZHMEELNER
WHEMBEESRSZEK
mRANEMKE (B
B)-FBEIPER-

AN SHE W 0 A AT
HENBBIEFNRFE
BE TR RE 5K
$*;*§EEEEZE§%H§ETEE’U
H i &8P E LR

BETOMN- E‘@%ﬁ%ﬁk$
EHERENBREZERE
sPER REENEMD
EPHAREMEEKEP



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019

2

E

(c)

(d)

S BRXREEwE

2 E D)
=@ A A )

A EEINEEmEEDN
BERAFEAE  HiE
AEBEBBIINEBENEE
RafE Wikl miExR#BR
B-MEEANEEBRE =
ERHM 2 AR -

HEBNMEKKIBD
HE
HEFINEBHREHER
Elﬁﬁ%%%m%%%
moREHESREAEHB
%i%%ﬁ%%%@ﬂm
THIE - BEPSRKEEH
BIEBIINEBENAEE QR
WA EHESHE S &
KEHBESINEE A
ERNRIMERNTENE
MADNRIMERE ANELZE
BHOREZARFTWNANE
ERMEEEEN S ES

B

MBI NS B Bk E
HEEBINEBHONEBE A
AMEH NS L E
R ERBREZENEN
tHﬂE#ﬁ%%%?H P 1

HETERBENER -
3 57 A B At 3 5 o (B
ARBERBEAARAE

NRAEIWMAEEERRD
IT%@$EI%£Ek
FENIBAEGE)M
E RAERAEZENEMA
HOIEFHOBRERS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 28 MxE R NERH

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of useful life

FrEME KERJXBEREL
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e

HEWE FAERFHIHEE

or lease term ®iE FHOREE
Machinery and equipment 3-5 years HERFZE IEGF
Others 5 years A 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.12(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other losses — net’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2.10) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties
is accounted for as described in Note 2.28(d).
When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease (see Note 2.10), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are
accounted for as described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets 210 HE & E

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(a) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as
if held under a finance lease (see Note
2.9); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group (Continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note
2.8. Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 2.12(b). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(c)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see Note 2.9).

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments

(a)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair
value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVTPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVTOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective. Where such an election
is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the

policy set out in note 2.28(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 S HEREwE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NEMBRARETZTLSRE K
TTHE /T Em
HMWERAZFIRE (&)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Other investments in equity securities (a)
(Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2018 B R=—ZF—NFLtAH
—HMLWZW%

Investments in securities held for trading
were classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value was

FIFEBEREHWRED
BREBBREERQYT
BEABRZEZRMEE-

TAEEXRZERY
RELERREBERP
BR-2FEERE

remeasured, with any resultant gain or REBHKREHTE

loss being recognised in profit or loss. EmEEZ2EMA
The net gain or loss recognised in profit BRIR Bz PR -

or loss did not include any dividends or g =K i
interest earned on these investments EBEIFEITEEZS
as these were recognised in accordance & & B Bk B 2 A {A] A%
with the policies set out in Note 2.28(f) BRHE - HIRH T

and 2.28(e).

2.28(f) 2.2.28(e) Fr &

JBZ%EE o °©
Investments in securities which did B E 58 Bl 1) 5 5
not fall into the above category were KEeRHRERH
classified as available for sale financial LETREE - A F
assets. At the end of each reporting EEREREHRE
period the fair value was remeasured, MatE2 EREED
with any resultant gain or loss being sk BiEe R A

recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately
in equity in the available-for-sale
investment reserve (recycling). As an
exception to this, investments in equity
securities that did not have a quoted
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price in an active market for an identical BEREAFEEEED
instrument and whose fair value could S ENREAEFS
not otherwise be reliably measured ®E AR AR &
were recognised in the balance sheet WMEBEEREES
at cost less impairment losses (see Note B & MR K&

2.12(a)(B) — policy applicable prior to 1st
July 2018). Dividend income from equity
securities was recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2.28(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2018
(Continued)

When the investments were
derecognised or impaired (see Note
2.12(a)(B) — policy applicable prior to 1st
July 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified
to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ESTBERREEm@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets JNEEBFBREERE
(a) Credit losses from financial instruments, (a) TMITE -EHNEE
contract assets and lease receivables FEREEZEE
&5 18
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018 A BE=F—NFtAH
—HAEBBERZHE
The Group recognises a loss allowance REBEBTIIEER 2
for ECLs on the following items: EHEEEBERRE
BREE:
- financial assets measured - R KRG
at amortised cost (including EZERMEE
cash and cash equivalents, (BEHAe B
loans receivables, trade and e EEY - EIK
other receivables and loans to ERX-EBEHRE
associates); fft, JE W R IB K
£l AN
ZER)
—  contract assets as defined in - AV B®RESE
HKFRS 15 (see Note 2.18); % B 155 F
BEZANBEE
(R MsE2.18)
= lease receivables; and - REREE: R
- loan commitments issued, which = B 1T E RE
are not measured at FVTPL. 2 WIBEBIE

%A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

(Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at
FVTPL, and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments,
expected cash shortfalls are measured
as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be
due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan
and (ii) the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-
free rate adjusted for risks specific
to the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated based
on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets LNREEBEEREERE

(Continued) (&)
(a) Credit losses from financial instruments, (a) EMIE -EHNEE
contract assets and lease receivables FEKEEZEE
(Continued) &5 18 (&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018 A) BE=F—-—NFLH
(Continued) —HEBBEHRAZHE

(#8)
Significant increases in credit risk 1= B )& b X 15 £ H

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

AR IA(RRE
ERAE)IZEER
BB VIR ARE
BARIE AR K&
Belun®s BN
K ¥ h6 AR B I RT
mMzemIAZE
BROZREAR - ELHE
HAGE ARER
B BOERATK
AEEAEEEER
SRR B IR W (1
RAE)ZETHZENR
THRASEDHX
NEEEES - xi)
T EEELD B H0
AE-ABXREOS
HF-AEBEEES
BRHAEBIFHOE
EREMHEER B
BEKBRIEESRN
HBERARE DT
BIA R ZAEEE
£t o

EFRAT(EMERAT
—E-NEER

161



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

For loan commitments, the date of
initial recognition for the purpose of
assessing ECLs is considered to be
the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the risk
of default occurring on the loan to which
the loan commitment relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

For margin client receivables, the Group
considers there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when clients
cannot meet margin call requirement
and uses the loan-to-collateral value
("LTV") to make its assessment.
The Group considers a margin client
receivable is in default when payments
under the margin call requirement are
30 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a
margin client receivable to be in default
when there is a margin shortfall which
indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full, taking into account the
pledged securities held by the Group.
A margin client receivable is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 ESTHREREw@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
JNEEEBREEERE

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued) (&)

(a) Credit losses from financial instruments, (a) EMIE -EHNEE
contract assets and lease receivables FEKEEZEE
(Continued) &5 18 (&)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018 A) BE=ZF—-—NEFLH
(Continued) —HEBBEHRAZHE
(&)
Significant increases in credit risk 1= B & g X 15 _E
(Continued) (&)
Depending on the nature of the HX°9&EAAE$IE<Z’|‘E
financial instruments, the assessment CHEERRB AR
of a significant increase in credit risk _}:ﬂ'Zuﬂfﬂfﬁﬁz &l 51

is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with Note 2.28(e) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1st July 2018

(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset
is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,

contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2018

Prior to 1st July 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified
as FVTPL (e.g. accounts receivables,
loans receivables, other receivables,
investment in equity stated at cost and
available-for-sale securities). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there
was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment
included:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2018
(Continued)

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and

joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2.4),
the impairment loss was measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with Note 2.12(b). The
impairment loss was reversed if there
had been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
Note 2.12(b).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at

cost, the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting was material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at
cost were not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

For accounts receivable, loans
receivable and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss was
measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and had not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

For available-for-sale securities which
were stated at fair value, when a decline
in the fair value has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and there
is objective evidence that the asset
was impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised in the available-
for-sale investment reserve (recycling)
was shall be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment even though the financial
asset had not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
was recognised in profit or loss was
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities were not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses were written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of customers included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery was considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts were
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against the customers directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt were reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
— goodwill;

- other intangible assets;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film related deposits;

- film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company's
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2.12(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.

2.13 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit or group of cash
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If
some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-
generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period,
that unit shall be tested for impairment before
the end of the current annual period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash- generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or group of
cash generating units.

On the disposal of the relevant cash
generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
are classified as intangible assets. Trading
rights acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Trading rights have an indefinite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The trading rights have
no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the Group can use to generate net
cash flows. As a result, the trading rights
are considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life
because they are expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading
rights will not be amortised until their useful
lives are determined to be finite. Instead they
will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Trading rights held in the Stock Exchange
(Continued)

The useful life of the trading rights is
reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trading rights held in The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

The trading rights held in The Chinese
Gold & Silver Exchange Society have an
indefinite useful lives and are recognised as
intangible assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. The trading rights are carried at cost
less impairment losses and are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that the trading rights may
be impaired by comparing their recoverable
amounts with their carrying amounts. The
trading rights have no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the Group can use to
generate net cash flows. As aresult, the trading
rights are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life because they are expected to contribute
to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading
rights will not be amortised until their useful
lives are determined to be finite.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EETHERE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments 2145 @b T A 3K 55

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Film

(a)

(b)

(c)

rights and films in progress

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered to
assess whether there is any indication that
assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Film related deposits 2T ERHEBAG ®

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for
the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artists and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for the acquisition and production of
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision
for film related deposits is made based on future
revenue generated for the Group and the carrying
value of film related deposits.

2.18 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the group
recognises revenue (see note 2.28) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.12(a) and are reclassified
to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 2.19).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2.28). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note
2.19).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2.28).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2.18).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.12(a)).

2.20 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If the collection
of loans receivable is expected to be one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2.12(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEESTHEREZE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents LN BEeRBEFEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.12(a).

2.22 Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

2.23 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2.25Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EETHERE®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 BT 15 #i (@)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
loses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2.9, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale.
In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 S HEREwE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 BT 15 #i (@)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company's shares.
When share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations
at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the fair
value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with Note 2.27(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with Note 2.27(ii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liahilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.28 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group's assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’'s revenue ad other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
at a point in time when the customers take
possession of and accept the products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(b) Income from licensing and sub-licensing

of film rights

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised at a point in time
upon the delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms of

the underlying contracts.

(c) Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised at a point
in time when the film is shown and the right

to receive payment is established.

(d) Rentalincome from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

(e) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

2.12(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(f)

(a)

(h)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
when the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time when the customer has
received the service from the Group, generally
when the trades are executed. Brokerage
commission income are generally due within
two days after trade dates.

Underwriting commission